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ABBREVIATIONS

L

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

”GI’OUp”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC”

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”

"HKS"

“RMB”

“UsD”

u%n

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

United States dollars

per cent.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CE BT

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
T & ZEIERE
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Operational Results R
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue W 601,950 481,124
Gross profit EF 11,066 17,542
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ REFELE EFNWERNEIE (14,990) (5,847)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation K EH B IHEEE£FHHNENR
JE518 (23,009) (11,503)
Loss for the year FREE (37,999) (17,350)
Loss for the year attributable KA B ANELFAEE
to owners of the Company
- from continuing operations —REFESEER (14,898) (5,395)
- from discontinued operation —REERIEKEER (23,009) (11,503)
(37,907) (16,898)
As at 31 March
W=BA=+—H
2021 2020
ZEZ—F TEIRE
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Financial Position B SRR
Non-current assets JEREEE 60,610 45,457
Current assets MBEE 917,156 761,423
Current liabilities mEaE (451,921) (321,062)
Net current assets MBEEZRE 465,235 440,361
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (20,509) (66)
Total equity T AR ER 505,336 485,752
Non-controlling interests El 2 8,835 8,319
Total equity attributable to owners KA B AEILE R AEEE
of the Company 514,171 494,071
Loss per share (HK cent) SREE (BWL) (0.180) (0.080)
Key Ratio Analysis FELESR
Continuing operations FEREE
Gross profit margin EF=E 1.8% 3.6%
Net loss margin AEsIEX (2.5%) (1.2%)
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENELE (B EET) 2.03 237
Note: Mtat -
1: Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities. 1 SRR R BERLURFAaE-
Annual Report 2020/21 % 2020/21



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sun Le

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Wang Ye
Mr. Wan Johnson
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 1 October 2020)
Mr. Wang Ye
Mr. Wan Johnson
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Ye

Mr. Wan Johnson
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

Mr. Sin Lik Man

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Wan Johnson
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

Mr. Sin Lik Man

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wan Johnson (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Wang Ye

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Sin Lik Man
Mr. Hui King Tat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Hui King Tat

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
STOCK CODE

2326

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 1102, 11/F
Shui On Centre
No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(with effect from 7 July 2020)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
CMB Wing Lung Bank

DBS Bank (Hong Kong)

Hang Seng Bank

Nanyang Commercial Bank

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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FEERIRITROBMRAE
BEXERTT
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Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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EEKRER1835

G H 5412

NSRS

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREBE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021
(the “Year”).

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has been
principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of metal minerals
and related industrial materials, and the production and sale
of industrial products. The disposal of production and sale
of utilities business under EE X TEEH R A A (literally
translated as Ningxia Tianyuan Power Generation Company
Limited) (the “Power Company”) was completed in June 2020
and the details of such disposal are set out under the heading
“Material Disposal” below.

Being a listed company under the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, we always give the
highest attention to the risk management and compliance
requirements. The economic conflict between the PRC and
United States in the recent years has negatively impacted the
stability of exchange rate of their currencies, which in turn
led to the unfavorable environment for the global trading
business. The fluctuation of exchange rate of USD against RMB
during the last few years has particularly affected the financial
performance of our sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials business to a certain degree. In
response to the above foreign exchange risk, the Group has
included the estimated exchange differences on currency
exposure in our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize
the impact of foreign exchange risk on its profit. The Group
will also consider to enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge against the Group’s currency exposure if
appropriate and necessary. In short, the Group’s management
is paying vigilant attention to the fluctuation of various foreign
currencies all the time to minimize the impact of foreign
exchange risk on the Group business.

FANZBLEARERDEFEMARREAREER
HIEAE (B TAEE) BE_F " —F=H
=+—HLEEFE (KEE) 2FHK-

EHBRR

BE_Z_—F-A=+—HLEFE -x&EHE
ERERBREETBEY BB IERMUR
TERBHETXAEREH LEEERTEE
BERAB (MBAHRAE) 2EERBEARERSE
BER_Z_TEATHKAREE ZFIFH
RTIXTEREEFIE —H-

REBMERSAARABERLTAT K
M—EeEERAREERERER AFERF
FBANEEEREEEBERNRELEMT
NEE EMEREKEZEBRIETH BE
REXZTRARBEXNRBE-—ERELLR
TERMRBREESBEY BRI IERMZE
BzMHBRBE-RER LAINERRE  AEEE
BETBEYEZHNEEBD AFMEENGESE
BERER BURIIERBYEH G 2% &k
ERR-AEETREBT LRI ESLQLE M
FERZINERR HBERARLE) -BE2 K&
EEEERZBIZEINEIRE > UEBER D
SNERBHAERMER T E-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS

In spite of the unfavorable environment and foreign
exchange risk aforementioned, the revenue of our sourcing
and sale of metal minerals and related industrial materials
for the year ended 31 March 2021 has increased by 40.4%,
from HK$350,898,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
HK$492,528,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. That
was mainly attributable to the recovery in demand of the
customers of our sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials business, and also our increased
efforts on negotiating and coordinating with our suppliers and
customers.

On the other side, our wholly-owned PRC subsidiary — &
EEERGRERGZAMBABRAE (iterally translated as
Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling Company Limited)
(the “Waste Recycling Company”) in Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region of the PRC has continued its stable contributions to
the Group’s revenue and profit for the Year. The management
of the Group will keep reviewing its operational performance
and efficiency regularly to further improve its return to the
shareholders of the Company.

PROSPECTS

The trade disputes and economic conflict between the PRC
and United States in the recent years has been negatively
impacting the global trading business and also the local
manufacturing sector in the PRC. Together with the outbreak
of coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19”) since late January
2020, the global economy and trading environment became
more severe and tougher. Though the uncertain environment
for the global trading business players and manufacturers
still persisted, the China infrastructure investment has already
gradually picked up since the second half of last year, which
has offset the negative impact of the COVID-19 outbreak
on certain business sectors, like the steel and construction
materials manufacturers in the PRC. Also, the COVID-19
outbreak has aroused more attention on the importance
of technology development and environmental protection.
China’s latest commitment to environmental protection and
CO:2 emissions cuts would lead to the massive transformation
of the energy generation and utilization in China. Some of
the metal minerals traded by the Group have been widely
applied for use in these new energy developments and the
management expects that there would be a strong growth of
demand for those minerals in China in the future.

BEGFEAELARNREBERIERB HEZZS
=A==+ HIEFEE KBEKEESBE
MR IERN ZNEHEE S -TF=
=+—H L FE 350,898,000 701 140.4% = &
EE - —F=-HA=+—HI%E 492,528,000
B o WRENMAEEERRERIEESBEY
AT ERNERNE R BREHEURFZMAM
AIERRERKRE P ERE R IEFTE -

F—HE AERURTREEENEREAEZE
EFENBARZEEEERREFRGOHMAAR
A8 (MRRAF) REAFERBRAERT R
ENWmE R E AEEEEEEEHREZAT
HWEERFEAMERFHEN  RME—FRAS
RABRRBRZEER

AR

MERPEZBNE Z U R EFHR B
PRERERRTEA M EEESTEmEmF Eo
HBEE T _EE-ARE_E-NETRFES
(TcoviD-19)) BI1EBE 2K EREZIRER
BB BREERHESERNEERNEEEN
TRERBRAFE THERIEREELE
TERELRBEZHLE T RMiLHHCOVID-19)5 &
HETERTENAFEE flu0 o =8 &2
RIS 2 2 o )t 4h > COVID-19)R B MAEE T A
HEMERERRBEFRESEENME - PEHIR
BRER AR RN RSB ERPREE
BEERANBASEEEASSE AEBNREEEN
—LESBRYBEZEANRIERRME  ~E®
EEEEHAATENEEEYNEREEE
ﬂ»o
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Following the completion of the disposal of its production and
sale of utilities business under Power Company in June 2020,
the Group was able to devote more attention and resources
on the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industry materials business. The Group has been engaging in
the above business segments for years and it has established
solid business relationships with the world’s leading mining
companies and various business partners. The Group aims
at materialising the aforementioned relationship, seizing
the business opportunity arisen from the bounce back of
infrastructure investment and the expected growth of the new
energy development sector in China, transforming them into
various incomes and profits, and maximising the return for the
Company'’s shareholders.

At the same time, in response to the persistent uncertainty
of the economy outlook, the Group has been implementing
austerity measures on controlling the operation cost and
capital expenditure in order to preserve sufficient resources
and capital to capture the business opportunities in the future.
The Group’s management has devoted extra effort during
the year under review on controlling the operational risk and
liquidity risk to ensure the Group can get through the tough
and challenging situation smoothly. The Group’s management
will continue to monitor the Group’s asset and liability status
carefully and will strive to expand in opportunities with growth
potential and sustainable development.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | hereby express my sincere gratitude
to all shareholders and business partners for their continuous
support, and to all directors and employees for their efforts and
contributions during the Year.

Sin Lik Man
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS
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BUSINESS REVIEW
e G

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (“year under review”), the
Group was principally engaged in sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials and the production
and sale of industrial products. The disposal of production
and sale of utilities business under EE X T#HEHRA
&) (literally translated as Ningxia Tianyuan Power Generation
Company Limited) (the “Power Company”) was completed in
June 2020 and the details of such disposal are set out under
the heading “Material Disposal” below.

Revenue and Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group recorded an increase
in revenue, from HK$481,124,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020 to HKS$601,950,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 25.1% as compared
to last financial year. The Group's gross profit decreased by
approximately 36.9% from HK$17,542,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020 to HK$11,066,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021.

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the recovery
in demand of the customers of our sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business during the
year under review. Nonetheless, the uncertain environment for
the global trading business players and manufactures arising
from the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19
outbreak”) still persisted, which has negatively impacted the
global trading business and the local manufacturing sector in
the PRC. The Group’s gross profit and its profit margin therefore
further shrank during the year under review.

For the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business, the Group recorded a segment
revenue of HK$492,528,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020:
HK$350,898,000) and a segment profit of HK$2,615,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (Year ended 31 March 2020:
segment profit of HK$674,000), representing an increase of
approximately 40.4% and 288.0% respectively when compared
to the last financial year.

EZ e

REREER

BE_TZ_—F-—A=+—HLEE (TLEF
E)  AERTERERBERIFESBEIERY KB
FIERBUREERHETERER BEEX
TREBARAR (BEARE) 2EERHELR
EmEBLEER 2 -F2FATHURER
PEFEZFBHN TXEANESE —H-

i K EF

REBEE AERRESREHEEE_S 24
EHZ+—E|¢$F§“2481,124,000%751ﬁui%z
EE - —F=-HA=+—HIFE 601,950,000
BB - BEEEMG25.1% REBR 2
ENHBEE_Z_STE-A=t+—HILEEEZ

17,542,000 TV 436 9% ERE T - —F =
B =+—H 1% E 2 11,066,00078 7T ©
WEEmMnEERROBEEERBRIBESBRE

VMEREBATERNERNEL B REFHH A
> ZE—NEEBRFERFEE (TCoVID-1918
B)AENEGERSHE RN UEETERNTE
ERBDMAFEET EHEAREZERRTH
AIBEEERETEE AL KEBNEFR
REFENRLOBEEE—T UL

MRBEREECBRY LB TERNERM
SO AERREBEE_E_—F=-FB=+—HIHE
FE 3718 D 4EINZE492,528,0008 0 (BE S _TF
ZRB=+—H1EE : 350,898,00058 70) &7 iEixH
#]2,615,00087c (BE_E-_EE=F=+—HIE
FE . DfERF674,00087T) B E—HBEED
B4 11 4940.4% 2 288.0% ©
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Gross Profit (continued)

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under EEEBRFRERGEFHAERAQE (literally
translated as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling
Company Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”), the
Group recorded a segment revenue of HK$109,422,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (Year ended 31 March 2020:
HK$130,226,000), representing a decrease of approximately
16.0% as compared to last financial year. This segment reported
a decrease in its segment profit by approximately 44.7%,
from HK$13,845,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
HK$7,657,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. The decrease
in segment revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the selling price of one major industrial product and also
the decrease in the overall sales volume during the year under
review. Together with the general increase in the unit cost of
production during the year under review, it therefore resulted
in the decrease in this segment profit for the year ended 31
March 2021 as compared to the last financial year.

Other Net Income

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded an
other net income of HK$2,238,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020:
other net income of HK$18,860,000), and the decrease was
mainly attributable to the net foreign exchange loss recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2021 as compared to net foreign
exchange gain recorded for the last financial year. The net
foreign exchange loss recorded for the year ended 31 March
2021 was mainly due to the sustainable depreciation in USD
against RMB during the year under review which was the main
challenge to the business of the Group there.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily include staff costs, general
administrative expenses and depreciation. For the year ended
31 March 2021, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of HK$18,684,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020: HK$31,190,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 40.1% as compared
to last financial year. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the cost control measures implemented by
the management of the Group to deal with the unfavourable
business environment during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

O EE (&)

Wi KR EF (4B)

NEEFEERRERGAMNABAERAE (NRRF
RE) ZEERBETERERESMS A%
ERBE_S_—E=-RA=+—HLEEBHESE
PDEEUNEE109,422,0008 7 (BEZSZZSFE=4
=+—BLEE 130,226,000 7T) & _F—BE
FEERLDL16.0% LD E2H 2 DEBFNAEE
TETEF-A=+—HIEHFE213,845,000%8
TR TN EHE _E_—F=A=+—H
IEFE27,657,0008 7 DEEREBR VI EER
RoBEEEN—BFETEXRERNEERL K
BRENESN TN - ERNOBEEENEN
EERARE LA HBEERHE_ZE_—F=
B=+—HLEEENSEHNR E—MBREET

fe o

Hik A $58

HE_ T —F=ZA=+—HILEE > AERF
BEMUT AP EE2,238,0008 T (BE_S _ZTF
—A=+—HLEE : HfhUx A F%818,860,00075
o RO EERREE S —FE =R =1—
HEEERSNERBIBFE mEL—FHBE
ERGERKAFBE NBEE_TE-_—%F=4
=+ —HIEEERESEREEFENDEERNE
BEEETRARBHNFERE MmERAAE
EEMEFEEBN FE2E -

THREX

TEAZTEQEETHA —RITHEAX R
E-BHE_T_—EFE=-A=+—BHLEEE &x&
E 21517 FI % 18,684,000 T (B E — B - T4F
=B=+—HLEEE 31,190,000 T) > & _—§f
BEE R AI401% TEBI SR/ T EF BN A
EEEEENCIBEESHANUESTFEKR
BRI AR A E A I ©
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BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses of HK$3,852,000 (Year ended
31 March 2020: HK$2,238,000) are mainly represented by
the written down of inventories, loss allowance on trade
receivables and other receivables made during the year under
review.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by HK$494,000, or approximately
20.8% from HK$2,380,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
HK$1,886,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. The decrease
was attributable to the decrease in bills discount charge as
a result of the reduced use of bills receivables discounting
arrangement by the Group in its sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business during
the year under review. The Group will consider to make the
discounting arrangement of bills receivables to maintain
certain level of cash flows if appropriate and necessary. The
Group’s management is continuously and carefully monitoring
the Group's capital structure in order to utilize the financial
resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements and
business expansion.

Loss for the year
Continuing operations

In response to the unfavourable economic conditions and
persistent uncertainty of the economy outlook, the Group
has been implementing austerity measures on controlling
the operation cost and capital expenditure in order to cope
with the decrease in the gross profit of the Group’s business
during the year under review and also reserve a sufficient
level of resources and capital. There was a significant decrease
in administrative expenses, selling and distribution costs
and finance costs for the year under review when compared
to those costs and expenses for the last financial year.
Nonetheless, the negative effects on the financial result of the
Company due to the change from net foreign exchange gain
of approximately HK$16,413,000 recorded for the year ended
31 March 2020 to net foreign exchange loss of approximately
HK$1,571,000 recorded for the year ended 31 March 2021 has
significantly cancelled out and outweighed the positive effects
of those decrease in certain expenses factors stated above. The
Group therefore recorded an increase in loss for the year from
continuing operations, from HK$5,847,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020, to HK$14,990,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021.

EF5 o (&)

HhE =

H = 33,852,00087C (BE_ ST _EE=H
=+—HIFEE ;2,238,000 7T) F EISNEIREE
EEHMES MR - FEUE 5 =018 K H thFE U
TERS R o

=%

BERAREE S _SF-A=+—HIEE
2.2,380,00078 7T 5 /0 494,00078 7T 37 4920.8% £
ETE—F=HB=+—HIFE1886,000%
TR D TVHRERMEIRER ZHD > MERE
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)

Excluding the net foreign exchange gain or loss figures
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
loss for the year from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was HK$13,419,000, which was in fact
lower than the loss for the year from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 March 2020 of HK$22,260,000 by 39.7%.
The Group’s management has always been paying vigilant
attention to the fluctuation of various foreign currencies and
is constantly monitoring the foreign currency exposure. For
details, please refer to the session under the heading “Foreign
Currency Management”.

Discontinued operation

During the year under review, the Group recorded a loss
for the year from discontinued operation of HK$23,009,000
(Year ended 31 March 2020: loss of HK$11,503,000). The loss
from discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March
2021 was mainly attributable to the reclassification of foreign
exchange differences relating to the disposed subsidiary of
approximately HK$17,422,000, from equity to consolidated
statement of profit or loss which has led to the significant loss
on disposal of the subsidiary recognised upon the completion
of such disposal in June 2020.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$37,907,000 whereas
a loss of HK$16,898,000 was recorded in last financial year.
This represented a basic loss per share of HK0.180 cent for the
year ended 31 March 2021, whereas the basic loss per share of
HK0.080 cent was recorded in last financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided by
banks. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had current assets of
HK$917,156,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020: HK$761,423,000),
comprising cash and bank balances of HK$7,518,000 (Year
ended 31 March 2020: HK$6,093,000).

The Group's current ratio, calculated based on current assets of
HK$917,156,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020: HK$761,423,000)
over current liabilities of HK$451,921,000 (Year ended 31 March
2020: HK$321,062,000), was at a healthy level of 2.03, which
was maintained in a similar level of ratio as at 31 March 2020
(Year ended 31 March 2020: 2.37).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's trade payables amounted to
HK$409,568,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020: HK$258,783,000);
trade receivables amounted to HK$519,263,000 (Year ended 31
March 2020: HK$327,523,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's equity attributable to owners
of the Company increased to HK$514,171,000 (Year ended
31 March 2020: HK$494,071,000). The increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to the
fact that the exchange differences arising on translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries for the year under review
has outweighed the loss for the year recorded.

During the year under review, the Group continued to
implement a prudent financial management policy to protect
the shareholders’ interest of the Group. The management
will keep on exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain
financing activities, with the support from financial and
securities institutions and professional advisors, to meet its
ongoing operational requirements and business expansions
requirements.

FA 50l B8

TEBEE MEERRESERE
NEBFENERTHAEE RS RIBTRM
ZEEREAREERRHEESE NI —F
—B=+—R ANEBEZRHNEES917,156,000
B (HEZT-ZEFE=-RB=+—HILEEE:
761,423,0007%87T) ° BIRRE K IR1T4585£7,518,000
B (BE_E_SEF=-B=1t—HLEFE":
6,093,0003 7T) ©

R mENE E917,156,0008 T BE_SE_ZF=
B=+—HLEE : 761,423,000 7T) K% bUREh e
B451,921,0008 T (HE_SE_TF=F=+—H
LIEFEE 1 321,062,000 7T) 5t & REB ZREH
KA RBEKF  ZLR@EFR S _FE=
AZ+—HBbkXHEHE_ZE_TF=-A=1+—H
LIEFEFE 1 2.37) ZHEMKF o

A S —FE=ZRB=+—R AEBZENLE

S RIE2409,568,00087TC (BE_S_TF=H
_+ HIE4E : 258,783,000 7T) ; EWE ZH
TE#3519,263,0008 7 (BE_Z _EF=-H=+—
HIEEE | 327,523,000 7T) ©

RNIEZ—F=F=+—H>RAABH#EE AEMHN
AEBEERIEIMES14,171,00087T (HE_Z -
FEZB=+—HIEEE 494,071,000 7T) o &A
BEAANELEGENFTFERHANCIBEERE
WEBABSYBRRELEZEREECBBAERE
FRISHESIE o

REBEEE AEREERNBEMBEERRR
UREFAEERREZ D - BEERTESMES
HEREEBBZXETEHEBRSETETEE
EBZETN WENKEEEREFERT R

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Material Disposal

On 11 September 2019, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal
of 100% equity interests in the Power Company at a total
consideration of RMB169,000,000. The Power Company is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which operates
a waste heat power generation plant with an installed capacity
of 36 megawatts in the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region of the
PRC. The transaction was categorized as a major transaction
under the Listing Rules. On 31 October 2019, the transaction
was duly passed as an ordinary resolution by the Shareholders.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 11 September 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 16 October 2019 for the disposal of Power Company.
For the poll results announcement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 October 2019. The
disposal was completed in June 2020.

Save for the aforementioned, no other plans were authorized
by the Board for any material investments, additions of capital
assets or disposal as at the date of this annual report.

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried out and
conducted in HKS$, RMB and USD. The Group maintains a
strategy in its foreign currency risk management, primarily
by including the estimated exchange differences on currency
exposure in our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize
the impact of foreign exchange risk on the Group’s profit. The
Group will enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge against the Group’s currency exposure if appropriate
and necessary. The management thus believes the current
level of bank balances, certain receivables and payables
denominated in RMB and USD expose the Group to a
manageable foreign currency risk. The management is paying
vigilant attention to the fluctuation of RMB and is constantly
and closely monitoring the foreign currency exposure. The
Group will further consider using any appropriate financial
derivatives to hedge against the Group’s currency risk and
manage its exposure.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no capital commitments
(Year ended 31 March 2020: RMB1,840,000, (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,009,000) mainly for acquisition of
machineries, equipment and related installation works for the
Power Company).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (Year ended 31 March 2020: nil).

Events After The Reporting Period

The COVID-19 outbreak continued to bring about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and
may impact the Group’s operations and financial position.
The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from
the epidemic on the Group’s businesses and will take all
necessary and appropriate measures to reduce the impact of
the epidemic on the Group. Based on the currently available
information, the Directors confirm that there has been no
material adverse change in the financial or trading position of
the Group since the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXMEREEAGRERESRTE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Lik Man, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 42, has been an employee of the Company since October
2017 and appointed as chief financial officer since 27 October
2017. Mr. Sin has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 2 March 2018 and has been
appointed as acting chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from
31 July 2018. From 14 September 2018, Mr. Sin has been
re-designated as the chairman of the Board. Mr. Sin is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sin
received a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and further received a Master in Accounting from the Curtin
University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Sin is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA")
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

Mr. Sin has more than 20 years of experience in financial
control, corporate finance and capital market relations and
had taken up senior management positions in several Hong
Kong listed companies. Mr. Sin served as an independent non-
executive director in Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock
code: 1303) from December 2011 to September 2013. He was
appointed as the company secretary of West China Cement
Limited (stock code: 2233) from May 2010 to May 2012. He was
the investor relations general manager of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (formerly called Fook Woo
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 923) from June 2012 to
September 2013 and was appointed as company secretary
from June 2013 to September 2013. Mr. Sin Lik Man has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee of Kunming Dianchi Water
Treatment Co., Ltd (stock code: 3768) from November 2018 to
November 2020. All the companies indicated above with stock
code are listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEABEREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Sun Le

Aged 33, joined the Company as an executive director in
November 2019. Ms. Sun is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Ms. Sun graduated from the Self-taught higher education
examination (55 B B2 %) in Tourism Management
from the Northeast Normal University (88 J6ET &3 A 22) in 2011.
Ms. Sun has served as the senior management for several
trading companies in the People’s Republic of China, and she
has accumulated solid management experience in the trading
business sector.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Sun Di

Aged 35, joined the Company as a non-executive director
in September 2019. Ms. Sun is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in German with a minor
in international economics and trade from the Beijing Foreign
Studies University in July 2009.

Ms. Sun has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
risk management in the finance and investment industry. She
had worked in KPMG Huazhen, an international CPA firm, for
the period from October 2011 to January 2018. Ms. Sun is a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institution of Certified
Public Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee, Member of the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Management Committee

Aged 52, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit
Committee (re-designated as Chairman in October 2020), the
Risk Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
in February 2020.

Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a Certified Practicing Accountant
of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung currently serves as an executive
director of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited (stock code:
988), an independent non-executive director of Boyaa
Interactive International Limited (stock code: 434) and China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (stock
code 1062), and the chief financial officer of China Zenix Auto
International Limited (OTC: ZXAIY).

Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-executive director
of Guoan International Limited (stock code: 143) from 2020 to
2021, Asia Television Holding Limited (stock code: 707) from
2016 to 2019, and an independent non-executive director
of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited (delisted
in December 2019, stock code prior to the delisting: 6863)
in 2017. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree in social
science from the University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s
degree in accounting from the Curtin University of Technology
(currently known as Curtin University) in 1997 and a master
degree in science from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2002. The companies indicated above with
stock code are listed in United States of America and Hong
Kong.

Mr. Wang Ye, Chairman of the Nomination Committee, Member
of the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Remuneration Committee

Aged 33, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee in February 2020.

Mr. Wang obtained a Certificate of National Legal Professional
Qualification in China in 2017 and was admitted to the
State Bar of California in the United States in 2018. Mr. Wang
obtained bachelor’s degree in Laws from Peking University Law
School in 2010, a master degree in Laws of Environmental and
Resource Protection from China University of Political Science
in 2013 and a degree of Juris Doctor from the University of
Southern California in the United States (£ & 078 /E 2 K
2)in 2016. He has been a lawyer at King & Wood Mallesons in
Beijing from November 2016 to January 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEABEREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Wan Johnson, Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 41, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of
the Risk Management Committee and member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in October 2020.

Mr. Wan obtained a degree of honours bachelor of Science
from the University of Toronto in Canada in 2002, a master of
arts (Statistics) degree from the University of Michigan in the
United States in 2004 and a master of business administration
degree from the London Business School in the United
Kingdom in 2008. He has more than 15 years of professional
experience as an investment manager for Brilliance Capital
Management, a director for Deutsche Bank AG managing its
Asia Energy and Commodities research teams and a senior
human resources consultant for Aon Hewitt. Mr. Wan has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Longhui International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1007)
since August 2020 and he has also been appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
Audit Committee of Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 3768) since November 2020. Mr. Wan currently
serves as the managing director and head of China new
energy/industrial/bulk commodities research department of
Jefferies Hong Kong Limited. The companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wan has resigned on 25 February 2021 and his resignation
will take effect from 1 September 2021, for details please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hui King Tat, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative

Aged 37, joined the Group’s finance and account department
of the Group since July 2015. Prior to joining the Group, he had
worked at several firms of certified public accountants from
2006 to 2015. Mr. Hui has more than 14 years of experience
in accounting and auditing and he obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and finance from the Leeds Metropolitan
University (currently known as Leeds Beckett University) in
June 2006 and he has been a member of HKICPA since January
2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERTHRS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. lIts
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials, production and
sale of industrial products and production and sale of utilities.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review” section
set out on pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 16 of this annual report
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 59 to 60 of this annual report
respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be
held on 17 September 2021. A notice convening the annual
general meeting will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due
course.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTRS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held at 17 September
2021, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
13 September 2021. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from 14 September 2021 to 17 September 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 184 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 27(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31
March 2021 amounted to approximately HK$8,608,000 (2020:
HK$16,592,000).
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DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2021 is nil (2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sun Le

Non-executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Wang Ye
Mr. Wan Johnson
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and
resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and
with effect from 1 October 2020)

In accordance with bye-law no. 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws
and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Sin Lik Man and Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTRS

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’ emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

EEME

FEEEFMEZF BRI G FRRMEES

EENERRZ TSN Z2EDR

BAEEERE MERS —EBMKEEN £
ABHEEFANBE LR MET LN FEBHHEE
ERNEAREEN BERABDEEFHEFERER
BENESFMBECERERNBENETESR
EARGEZHMBARS - ZHREQ-

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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As at 31 March 2021
RZEFZ—-5=B=1+—H

Approximate

percentage of

the Company's

issued

Capacity and Number of Number of share capital

Name of director nature of interests shares held  share options held Total interests (Note 1)

ERATERTR

FZBHESL

EEfy BRREGENE FrisRR iR 8B FrisfElRE R B A (Hzt1)

Ms. Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 5,040,000,000 - 5,040,000,000 23.90%
REgt PRSI EE 2 5 (Ia22)

Note 1: The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2021.

Note 2: These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le is deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests, which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012 for
the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company adopted on
6 January 2003 was terminated on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. As at 31 March 2021, no share options were
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO

As at 31 March 2021, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RIZEZ—F=B=+—H RELARTEEF
KRG IR B 533615 FTF B 2 M & so MFArac i
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pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of the Company RAEATRRGBZHEE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held the Company’s
Capacity and as at 31 March issued share capital
Name of shareholder nature of interest 2021 (Note 3)
RIBZ—% EERARERT
=A=+—H RAZBATDE
MRS, At B REZNE Fii 8B (H7523)
Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
it PrEEdZE 2 B 5,040,000,000 (#5£1)
Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
BHEBA 5,040,000,000 (#f5#1)
Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
[B AT FriEtz @z 5 3,215,322,140 (fz32)
Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
BREEA 3,215,322,140 (ffz#2)
Notes: Mz -
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success 1. Z ZR%19 FSheen Success Investments Limited &
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun A > MSheen Success Investments LimitedFH
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in HEDEER  -FHIb RIBFESKIBERG 12
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO. L4315 73 112.5,040,000,0008% & 19 R HE A A ©
2. These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng 2. % Z B2 1D HYing Sheng Investment Co., Ltd S 7
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou A > MYing Sheng Investment Co., LtdFE A T4 2
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be BHEES  EIL RIFES RAERG > BRAIE
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO. R A003,215,322, 140/ & (D R HER o
3. The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share 3. EEARBBETRAZBANB DL REAR

capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021
as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other
relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,
would have to be recorded in the said register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
of directors and in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 61.4% and approximately 91.9% respectively of
the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
93.3% and approximately 100% respectively of the Group's
total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors who
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by the
operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and a system
for the management of environment, air emission, water
resources, soil, waste and energy.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEEHRS

EEEHN

RBE_E_—F=B=+—HLEEE > &xQF
WHEIUNFEEMA QAR BRERNHEME
BB EBNEERITHZEN

FTERXRRMERD

FEBZRARFEAARR ZHEMBIES ML
REBERNUW R AEZEL961.4%522991.9% ©

SEBZRAMEFREADARER ZIREEEY
B E A & B S N R BB AR BB £993.9% K2 £9100% ©

RER BEEE REZEAEZHEARR
EEMATSERARTEETRAAES%Z EFR
RORAEERAERAHEETHEEEANER

o

IRIRER

WIKIRIE R EREE R HEREMBLEYHAERN
T - EHHTZEZNER AEEREAIFE
EREW R E -HUILHME B RERR
BT BRETEBERYABRRREGNER IR
RABTRHIETHHRE BER KER 1B B
WMk AEREENGE  RORIRRFRENESH
ETEKEHERES -

Annual Report 2020/21 £ %§ 2020/21

29



30

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.

With employees being its cornerstone for success and key
to the development of core competency, the Group makes
every effort to ensure its operation is compliant with laws
and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention. The Group also stays
connected with its customers and suppliers and has ongoing
communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and
physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company's subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the
ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment and operations
shall accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2021
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group’s operation
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of about 131
employees and directors (Year ended 31 March 2020: 263).
The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$26,239,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020:
HK$47,942,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, subsidised training programme, share
option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(continued)

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2021 had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
before they are duly approved by the Board under the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 outbreak continued to bring about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and
may impact the Group’s operations and financial position.
The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from
the epidemic on the Group’s businesses and will take all
necessary and appropriate measures to reduce the impact of
the epidemic on the Group. Based on the currently available
information, the Directors confirm that there has been no
material adverse change in the financial or trading position of
the Group since the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Sin Lik Man
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has continued to implement appropriate corporate
governance practices to ensure transparency, accountability
and effective internal control. The Board has adopted the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report for
the year ended 31 March 2021, which contains the Company’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published in the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites no
later than five months after, the end of the financial year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board’s primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate strategies,
to establish policies and plans, to oversee management of the
Group, to evaluate the performance of the Group, to assess
the achievement of targets set by the Board periodically
and to review and approve annual and interim results and
other significant financial and operational matters under
the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board is
directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
responsibility of day-to-day management and operations of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors including two executive directors, namely Mr. Sin
Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Sun
Le, one non-executive director, namely Ms. Sun Di, and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai
Lam, Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Wan Johnson.

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and risk management committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual report are
detailed on pages 35 to 46 of this annual report.

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” sets out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 17 to 20 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on
the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting matters

affecting the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EZFE2gEZERRRAE
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, fifteen regular Board E_E_—F=A=+—HULEE - EXF
meetings and the 2020 annual general meeting (“2020 AGM") 1T 7 tEREHERK_Z fgfﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
were held. The attendance records of each director is set out as (T2 TE2EREFFAY)) - FES2HER
follows: MEFIAOT

Number of attendance

HERY
2020
Annual General
Board meetings Meeting
—E°%E
Name of Director EENUS EREER RREFAE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Sin Lik Man B RE 15/15 11
Ms. Sun Le mET L 15/15 ”n
Non-executive Director FRITER
Ms. Sun Di ¥y ko 15/15 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REM AL 15/15 171
Mr. Wang Ye FEEE 15/15 1/1
Mr. Wan Johnson EgERE
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and (7= E‘?f FFEFA—HEZER
resigned on 25 February 2021 and R-E_—F_H_+HHARE
with effect from 1 September 2021) BZEZ—FAA—HEEZ) 6/6 =
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David bﬂﬁ‘gﬁi
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and W ZEZFFE=F=+—HEF
with effect from 1 October 2020) BZEZFF+H—HEE) 9/9 171
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS
(continued)

The 2020 AGM of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020 was held on 21 August 2020. The forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
17 September 2021 (meeting agenda will be provided in
the Notice of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our Directors,
company secretary and other senior executives of the
Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the shareholders. All
Directors treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM held annually.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 for the year
described below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Sin Lik
Man (“Mr. Sin”) has been serving as both the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2021, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the AGMs of the Company in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference
materials to enable them to familiarise with the Group's
business operations and Board'’s policies. The Company is
committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development.
Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman), Mr.
Wang Ye, Mr. Wan Johnson (appointed on 1 October 2020
and resigned on 25 February 2021 and with effect from 1
September 2021) and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Sin
Lik Man.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2021 to review the remuneration packages for
Directors. The attendance records of each member is set out as
follows:
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Number of
attendance
Name of member e tE HERH
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) SREMEE (EFF) 2/2
Mr. Sin Lik Man KX 2/2
Mr. Wang Ye FELEE 2/2
Mr. Wan Johnson BEERE
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and R -EFE_ZFF+H—HEZER
resigned on 25 February 2021 and R CEC—FZH A AT
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_——F N F—HEEL) S
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David Eﬁﬁwﬁi
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and 7= %Ei'_ =A=+—HFHFE
with effect from 1 October 2020) BZZF-FFA+F—HEEK) 2/2

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2021, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Ngai
Lam and Mr. Wan Johnson (appointed on 1 October 2020
and resigned on 25 February 2021 and with effect from 1
September 2021) and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Sin
Lik Man.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the“Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013 which set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) in January 2019 to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of Nomination Committee as provided in its
terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Recommended candidates

The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for directors
to it by any directors or shareholders; provided that
in the case of shareholder recommendations, such
recommendations comply with all applicable notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Bye-laws,
the procedures for a shareholder’'s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting and the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may also
consider, in its sole discretion, any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any
source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise
good judgment, to provide the commitment to
enhancing shareholder value, practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed
in the context of the then-current composition of the
board, the operating requirements of the Company
and the long-term interests of all shareholders.
In conducting this assessment, the Nomination
Committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider
diversity and such other factors as it deems appropriate
given the then-current and anticipated future needs of
the board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills
on the board. The Nomination Committee may also
consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
above diversity perspectives, taking into account the
Company’s business model and needs, are set out in a
Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Independence

The Nomination Committee shall ensure that at least
one-third of the board members (or such other number
of the members of the board as prescribed by the
Listing Rules from time to time) meet the definition of
independent non-executive director. The Nomination
Committee shall annually assess each nominee for
independent non-executive director by reviewing
any potential conflicts of interest that he or she and
their immediate family members (as defined in the
Listing Rules) may have, based on the criteria for
independence set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
A retiring independent non-executive director who has
served the board for a period of nine consecutive years
or more is eligible for nomination by the board to stand
for re-election at a general meeting provided that he or
she is still considered independent by the board.

Nominee evaluation process

The Nomination Committee will consider as a
candidate any director who has indicated his or her
willingness to stand for re-election and any other
person who is recommended by any shareholders.
The Nomination Committee may also undertake its
own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional firms or other third parties
to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
nominees. The Nomination Committee may use any
process it deems appropriate for the purpose of
evaluating candidates which is consistent with those
set forth in its terms of reference, the Company’s Bye-
laws, the corporate governance policy and the policy
described herein; provided that the process used for
evaluating a nominee for each election or appointment
of directors shall be substantially similar and under
no circumstances shall the Nomination Committee
evaluate nominees recommended by a shareholder
pursuant to a process that is substantially different than
that used for other nominees for the same election or
appointment of directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

Nomination procedures

The company secretary shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from board members, if any, for
consideration prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by board members. For filling
a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the board for its
consideration and recommendation. Until the issue of
the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall
not assume that they have been proposed by the board
to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience),
and any other information, as required pursuant to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the proposed
candidates. A shareholder can serve a notice to the
board of directors or the company secretary within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect a certain person as a director in
accordance with the relevant procedures posted on the
Company’s website. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular. A candidate is allowed to
withdraw his or her candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
board of directors or the company secretary. The board
shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting. Shareholder proposed resolutions
shall take the same form as the resolutions proposed
for the candidates recommended by the board.

RBEE®

(e)

(4&)

RBER

AEMERORRERZEST TR WEF
EFEEMERBBEEAN WA  MUHESR
ZEERAREAERE - IELEE TR
LWIFEEGHERBIVEEA - BLIEM
TR RRLEEEREHRERBRER U
HEFGERERIE REBEREANR
RAEL2EMS RLEETRAES
RAUHERRRELEERR EET#
REBRDIL BRRALTFASHEACE
EFRTEENRRAGLERE-

RIEHERESFSRLNRERE LS
EMNREANER REREFTE—HRE
Ko ZBRAKBRBEBEREE R FZE
RORE BHEERBREANER BE
it (BIEE FE RAEAEE) Uk E R EAt
B} o fe SR PI IR RIS AR B 48 ik Py 4B
EFRiEHEMBENRESSH AW
SELEN RPEARESEEREA
THREEFNREZR -BAERBEEAN
%¥’\‘§H§ﬁ?ﬂ@ﬁﬁ)§z/_§ﬁﬁ§_uﬁ?’*%%
BRREUHSE - BEATRKREAS
TTHIJTIHE%FEﬁﬁ%%@I@EﬁVM%?éﬁ%
HENRE-BEFIRNBEAEEREEA
RERMKRREAGSEMBEEEERRKR
EH-RRIEEZNARREEETFERG
EARNRBEER Lo

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the board composition and
independence of independent non-executive directors,
and considered the suitability of those retiring directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting
as well as the need for a director succession plan. The
Nomination Committee also reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Diversity Policy and discussed the objectives set for
implementing the latter, and noted that those objectives had
been achieved. The Nomination Committee concluded that the
board composition should continue unchanged.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the
year ended 31 March 2021 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assess the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; review
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-election of director. The attendance records of each
member is set out as follows:

EEERH®S

RBZ=EE (@

BE_Z_—F-A=+—HILFE RELZEE
ERNEEFE CANABIFNTESE 2B
M UTEERTERREBFAG LEEEEZ
BRESEEEER B URESFEETANEFEZE

B RLEZEETRAIREHERSTILER

WalsmmETREMREZBER hEDZFHE
7@8%‘“%5}2 RV EEGERNEFTG AN
FEMERT N o

ﬁ?ﬁ:::—izﬁz—f——ﬁﬂzﬁﬁ RBBEE
BHTZREZUEHEFTGIRIE - RERK
ﬁﬁﬁk  AMERABBIIFNTES 2 BIUY ; 7t
ZEREEEFFHERIMNESIRHEERER
Ro-BMBEZHEBREIIMT :

Number of
attendance
Name of member R EH4 HERH
Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman) FEXE (FHE) 3/3
Mr. Sin Lik Man I SRE 3/3
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SREEM T E 3/3
Mr. Wan Johnson E; ”zq—f‘EfE
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and (R —E_FF+A—HEZITR
resigned on 25 February 2021 and (N EZ—F_H A AT
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_——F /1 F—HE£) 1Al
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David SERE LT
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and = %S_ EFE=H=+—HFTE
with effect from 1 October 2020) BZZF-FF+F—HEEK) 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2021,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 1 October 2020), Mr. Wang
Ye and Mr. Wan Johnson (appointed on 1 October 2020
and resigned on 25 February 2021 and with effect from 1
September 2021).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

B

“E8g (&)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the BTXZEZESTEAEHWNESTSEAVKEERK
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control RZPETRAKRER AT ZBENETEERRE

principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also delegated
the corporate governance function of the Board to monitor,

procure and manage corporate governance compliance within K E§ 3 PR 48 ub & R o
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s

websites.

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended  &{
31 March 2021 and the attendance records of each member is g

set out as follows:

BB MIEE - RERE

o %V%E TEEMFESRG 2B
IE$$@WZ¢¥E/&E\
REBE-BRZESRRBEZE2XARER

T —F=ZRA=t+—HLEE BXEE
=REH EMEZHFEBEREIIWMT :

Number of
attendance
Name of member e tE R
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) RRMEE (EF) 3/3
Mr. Wang Ye FERLE 3/3
Mr. Wan Johnson aﬁ/ﬁ/q-flEEE
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and R -EFE_ZFF+H—HEZER
resigned on 25 February 2021 and with W CE T —F T+ A HEE
effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_——F /1 F—HEL) 11
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman) Eﬁﬁwﬁi
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and 7= %Ei'_ =A=+—HFHFE
with effect from 1 October 2020) BZZF-FF+F—HEEK) 2/2
The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee MW TFAXRFEBEZEZE BT TIEMM :
during the year:
. reviewed and discussed the audited financial - BRENmAIERSE S _ZF=A
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March S+ —HEFEZRKEZVEREK T
2020 and recommended to the Board for approval; BREEETLE;
. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with - BRTECEERFEETREERTAIZ

the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the BRREEEARSZHERT ;

corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial -
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2020 and recommended to the Board for

approval;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group;

reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2021, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2021, the Risk Management Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wan Johnson (Chairman)(appointed as Chairman on 1
October 2020 and resigned on 25 February 2021 and with
effect from 1 September 2021), Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr.
Wang Ye.

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of the
risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board on the same. The full
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2021 to identify risk on Group’s operation; to
review and recommend to the Board the interim review reports
on risk management and internal control. The attendance of
each member is set out as follows:

@F ﬁi&éﬁ@ (n‘ﬁ)

BE_Z_—F-_RA=T—HLEFE AREE
ZEERTTMRERH UHNAEHEELY
BB ; =B R E R A ER B R P HA S 5T R
HOUMEMEFEFHEEER - EMEZE
EBEREIIMT :

Number of
attendance
Name of member REH4 HERE
Mr. Wan Johnson (Chairman) 7:>5z/sc5‘6$ (If)
(appointed as Chairman on 1 October 2020 (= FE+A—HEZTAELTER
and resigned on 25 February 2021 and 2 %'5: FZH A HFF
with effect from 1 September 2021) BZZEZ—FNF—HEEK) 1/1
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REEMITE 2/2
Mr. Wang Ye FELELE 2/2
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David SEREL
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and = g_ FEF=H=+—HEFT
with effect from 1 October 2020) HZZEZZFA+F—HEEK) 1/1

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 53 to
58 of this annual report.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable to
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”), the auditor of the Company:

1% B4 BT Bz 1% BR B <&

ERAABINEREMBARBDBE_E - —F
—A=T—HLFERSMBREZEEZMIL
BN AFRBS3EBEZ VBIUZBAEIRE ) —&
g o

REFER ENNBNERABZUMEEEE
(&R SstEHMARAR ((HAEEE) 2 &
BT

HKs’000

FET

Fees for audit services (Note a) ZHERFE 2 BB (Wita) 680
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) IEZHBRZEZER (Watb) 170

Total

Notes:

(@) The audit services provided by Crowe.

(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe.

#ast 850

(@) TZBR T B B =S PR (o

(b) IR B R E I EP R -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions, the Board
has delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee which
include the following:

(a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The
systems, including a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use, and maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The systems
are set up to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement of financial statements or
lost of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitors the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It evaluates and determines the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group’s
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can have access to
sensitive and confidential inside information.

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2021
in accordance with the requirements under code provision C.2
of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review agreed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hui King Tat (“Mr. Hui") was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 January 2020. The biographical
details of Mr. Hui are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
page 20 of this annual report. Mr. Hui has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law no. 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law no. 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (with effect from 7 July 2020).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy, which allows
the shareholders of the Company to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy,
in addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare
interim dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

the Group's general financial condition;

the Group's working capital and debt level;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
the Group’s liquidity position;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

the general market conditions;

the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda,
the articles of association of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

L RYR Y S GRS

A\ Crowe

BEEEE () StMEHERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

B A TSIRET 7R IBIEF09E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to
183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EENR S

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to notes 2(h)(i), 2(j) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
RSB EIE

Trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$519,263,000
as at 31 March 2021.
RIE-_—&FE=A=+—H BKREZH®
V= Far)

TE#975519,263,000

Management make estimates when assessing impairment
provision of trade receivables. The estimates were made based
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’ credit quality,
likelihood of collection, historical write-off experience and
current market conditions.

IR ET{th B U B 5 IR B R (E £ B I B IR JE 1F W {d 5t o B Rf
EEHENBWRIBA RN IRE - EFANGEEER IXE
FIEHIET AR ~ A M EEsC B S B AT T AL o

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing recoverability of debts involves a significant
degree of judgement and estimation by management.
EMBENEARERESEE WHRAAEBGREMHREN
BEM UERREBHEEHEN R EMER S R EREFLE
K2 E A B R (5t o
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HER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt REAREENSZE

- we obtained direct confirmations from a
selected sample of debtors for the trade

receivables
KM EHmENGEREASEWE ZHRIEER
HiZER

- we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support
the validity and completeness of sales to
gain assurance for the outstanding trade
receivables
BPEERRE I G B U i
ENB R R ST > TRk AR Uk B89 FE
W & 7 RIEES (R 58

- we assessed the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates
on the impairment provision of the
receivable balances and the extent of loss
allowance required
BB 5T E B E i 5t R IR A ER BV R
EEE R FTERFL IR R EEEROK
B PR VR
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B E RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZEEMERS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZEEMERS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Alvin Yeung Sik Hung.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2021

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

raiEm
FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=HB=+—HIEEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HKS\ 000
i3 FET FAET
Continuing operations FraREEm
Revenue Wrak 4(a) 601,950 481,124
Cost of sales 4 & A A (590,884) (463,582)
Gross profit EF 11,066 17,542
Other net income H Mg A3 28 5 2,238 18,860
Selling and distribution costs HE kDR (794) (3,023)
Administrative expenses TR (18,684) (31,190)
Other operating expenses H&S &M (3,852) (2,238)
Loss from operations "rEEE (10,026) (49)
Finance costs B AR A 6(a) (1,886) (2,380)
Loss before taxation FRIG ARS8 6 (11,912) (2,429)
Income tax FriSiR 7(a) (3,078) (3,418)
Loss for the year from continuing REFBESEETR
operations ZFEARGIE (14,990) (5,847)
Discontinued operation EARIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued REBRIEREETR
operation ZEAEE 17 (23,009) (11,503)
Loss for the year FAEE (37,999) (17,350)
Attributable to: §'JAiF§T|5
Owners of the Company PiN/N jﬁﬁﬁ}\ (37,907) (16,898)
Non-controlling interests JEERE (92) (452)
Loss for the year FREIE (37,999) (17,350)
Loss for the year attributable to ZIS’A_\E.I%EAL@TSE A
owners of the Company: K548 - »
~ from continuing operations —REFEK .é._'¥i‘§§ (14,898) (5,395)
— from discontinued operation — KRB BRI EETE (23,009) (11,503)
(37,907) (16,898)
HK Cent HK Cent
_ AL L
Loss per share SREE 13
From continuing operations REFEREER
Basic and diluted %K&fiﬁé (0.071) (0.026)
From discontinued operation RKEBKRIEREER
Basic and diluted HEARMHE (0.109) (0.054)
From continuing and discontinued REFERLEEBREELE
operations .‘ﬁgf_*é.‘,\
Basic and diluted EARR 8 (0.180) (0.080)

The notes on pages 67 to 183 form part of these financial $F67E183B Z st AZSMBRRZ—H D -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeEmkEMEERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #ZEZ T - —F=FA=+—HLEE

2021 2020
e —ECEHF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Loss for the year FREE (37,999) (17,350)
Other comprehensive FRzEMZEKE FIX)
income/(expenses) for the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently JRERAIfEEF DIEEET 2 BEE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on HENBARMBERERESL
translation of financial statements ZERER
of subsidiaries 40,161 (48,007)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign F£ARBHEEBINEFZ
operation disposed of during the year B OLERAE 17,422 =
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) A Z Hith 2 &= / G5
for the year (net of nil tax (2020: nil)) (RZERE (CETIZTE . T) 57,583 (48,007)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) FEARZMEU L~ (%) 48%E
for the year 19,584 (65,357)
Attributable to: THIALEMS:
Owners of the Company KRNBHEE A 20,100 (65,265)
Non-controlling interests FEER R (516) (92)
19,584 (65,357)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) AT HEE AELZE KL (B%)
attributable to owners of the Company #EZEE4H :
arise from:
Continuing operations FRERE 25,471 (40,022)
Discontinued operation BAR IERE T (5,371) (25,243)
20,100 (65,265)
The notes on pages 67 to 183 form part of these financial $67E183B 2 Mzt AZFHBRERZ—H D o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIKRAR

AT 31 MARCH 2021

R B —F=A=+—H

2021 2020
B TECRE
Notes HKS$’000 HKS000
Kzt FAET FAEIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BRE MR E 15(a) 31,802 36,779
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(b) 28,767 8,634
Goodwill HE 16 - -
Other intangible asset HthmEEE 17 - =
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 26(b) 4 44
60,610 45,457
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =78 18 31,275 35,479
Trade receivables FEW & Z 718 19 519,263 327,523
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE & &
receivables H AU RIS 20 359,100 170,268
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 21 7,518 6,093
917,156 539,363
Assets held for sale BEHEESE 12 - 222,060
917,156 761,423
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables BT E Z I8 22 409,568 258,783
Accruals, deposits and other payables ESTER ek
HpE I8 23 35,773 22,597
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 1,393 752
Tax payable EEIRIE 26(a) 5,187 3,982
451,921 286,114
Liabilities directly associated with the RFEHEBEERERZ
assets held for sale aE 12 - 34,948
451,921 321,062
Net current assets RBEEZFE 465,235 440,361
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEEE 525,845 485,818
Annual Report 2020/21 % 2020/21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

AT 31 MARCH 2021 RZ-&E_-_—F=F=+—H

2021 2020
—EFE-—% “ZT2F
Notes HKS$’000 HKS000
HiaE FAET FAET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 20,443 =
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE 26(b) 66 66
20,509 66
Net assets BEFE 505,336 485,752
Equity féﬁ
Equity attributable to owners KNBHEB NEEER
of the Company
Share capital i 27(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves B 509,954 489,854
514,171 494,071
Non-controlling interests IR S (8,835) (8,319)
Total equity R AEER 505,336 485,752
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson A -_ZF - —F A -+ A K EF T A RIRE
25 June 2021. {70
Mr. Sin Lik Man Ms. Sun Le
B EE 2 Sodun
Director Director
£ EE

The notes on pages 67 to 183 form part of these financial $67E183B 2 Mzt AZFHBRERZ—H D o
statements.

62 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #iiRB B AER AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MOEmEHR

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=HB=+—HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAFER A
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory Contributed  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserve profits Total interests equity

kE  ROEE oHEE  EXER  LERE  ESRER  ERRBE  RZEM it HEREE  REeE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000
TEL TER TE TET TET TET TET TERL TERL TEL TEL

At 1 April 2019 rZE-NEMF—H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 16,563 31,960 (12,790) 471,087 559,336 (8,227) 551,109
Loss for the year FREE = = = = = = = (16,898) (16,898) (452) (17350)
Exchange differences arising on BERBARMBRR

translation of financial statements of EEVERER

subsidiaries = = = S S = (48,367) = (48,367) 360 (48,007)
Total comprehensive expenses FRZERTAE

for the year = = = S S = (48,367) (16,898) (65,265) (92) (65,357)
Transfer to retained profits upon REERBAR®

deregistration of a subsidiary BRERTER - - - - - - (66) 66 o . S
Transfer from retained profits to HRDENBEE

statutory reserves EERE = = = = 5435 = = (5435) = = =
Utilisation of reserve HRkE - - - - (864) - - 864 - - -
At31 March 2020 R-8-%F

=B=1+-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 21,134 31,960 (61,223) 449,684 494,071 (8319) 485,752

At 1 April 2020 RIZ-ZEMA-A 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 21,134 31,960 (61,223) 449,684 494,071 (8,319) 485,752
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - - - - (37,907)  (37,907) (92) (37,999
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign  EREHEENEHZ

operation disposed of during the year ~ EF D EBEE - - - - - - 17,422 - 17,422 - 17,422
Exchange differences arising on BRENBARMBRR

translation of financial statements of ~ E4ZEREE

subsidiaries - - - - - - 40,585 - 40,585 (424) 40,161

Total comprehensive income/(expenses) A2 E M/ ()

for the year k] - - - - - - 58,007 (37,907) 20,100 (516) 19,584
Transfer from statutory reserves to REERBARE

retained profits upon disposal of BAEREEEE

a subsidiary R A - - - - (8,052) - - 8,052 - - -
Transfer from retained profits to HRGENBEE

statutory reserves EEHE - - - - 2,084 - - (2,084) - - -
Utilisation of reserve HAkE - - - - (706) - - 706 - - -
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—&

=B=1+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 14,460 31,960 (3,216) 418,451 51417 (8,835) 505,336

The notes on pages 67 to 183 form part of these financial $67E183B 2 Mzt AZFHBRERZ—H D o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREMER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

2021 2020
e —EIEHF
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
ok FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8
- from continuing operations —RBFERSEER (11,912) (2,429)
- from discontinued operation —REBRIEREET (3,404) (17,318)
(15,316) (19,747)
Adjustments for: U T BZIEEH 2 8% .
Finance costs B4 B pR A 6(a)& 11 1,934 2,851
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME -KREK
plant and equipment RBEZEES
(Wei) B3R 5&6(c) 172 (76)
Written off of property, M2~ R B e 55 A T2
plant and equipment 11 421 -
Depreciation for property, ME-BERREZ
plant and equipment e 6(c)& 11 11,598 32,213
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEECINE 6(c)&11 7,711 15,342
Fair value gain on derivative financial TESMIAZ
instruments NAERER 5 - (1,896)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary EEc L ENS ST 6(c) - 278
Loss allowance on trade receivables FEW B SR I8k 185 E 6(c) & 11 469 1,054
Loss allowance on other receivables HihEWRRIEEEEE 60 430 314
Written down of inventories FE MR 6(c) 2,263 =
Impairment loss on JEEERG e T R B RS 1B
non-controlling interests 6(c) 690 624
Interest income FE WA 5&11 (354) (452)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) EREE () P8 1,892 (2,217)
27,226 48,035
11,910 28,288
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEETEH
Decrease in inventories EEZ R 1,038 10,124
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FENEB S HIBE
(10 /ﬁf,ﬂ\ (179,021) 137,470
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ANMIERERK
other receivables HfhfEWERIE Z 38 (130,884) (64,463)
Increase in trade payables FE{ B 5 I8 2 38 139,179 246,255
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, EsTER s
deposits and other payables HtEAmRIEZ
@, CRiL) 12,740 (682)
(156,948) 328,704
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EERERER
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F g 2.2
Notes HKS’000 HKS'000
g3 FAET FAET
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED (AW REREZ2RE
FROM OPERATIONS (145,038) 356,992
Income taxes paid BIPRER
Hong Kong 54 26(a) - (73)
PRC 2] 26(a) (2,228) (2,555)
Tax refunded BRI
Hong Kong 54 26(a) - 507
PRC F 26(a) - 1,694
(2,228) (427)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (FAI?) RBEKEZFHZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFE (147,266) 356,565
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEH
Payment for the purchase of property, TNEEYE - BEX&
plant and equipment BB ZIE 15(a) (1,227) (11,861)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME BERKREBEZ
plant and equipment FTig I8 - 425
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR ZFA1EMRIE 156,693 -
Interest received BWF S - 116
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) %k B_~ () REEZEZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 155,466 (11,320)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HAanHERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—% TECRE
Notes HKS’000 HKS'000
ior=3 FAET FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B IEE
Interest paid BENHE (40) (2,058)
Proceeds from bank advances for IRITRNIREERH Y
discounted bills FriS =18 28,710 =
Repayment of bank advances for BRIBITAIR IR BN
discounted bills (27,600) (385,319)
Capital element of lease rental paid ENHEEzREEH D (6,176) (12,884)
Interest element of lease rental paid BN EED (1,894) (793)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ARrmE RS IREFEE
ACTIVITIES (7,000) (401,054)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREEEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (GRe2) 2% 1,200 (55,809)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZREKRIRNEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,107 92,373
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXRFEIHZE
RATES CHANGES 211 (30,457)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZRERIREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 7,518 6,107
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND IRE&RIRESZEMEROIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand IRTARFHEIREE 21(a) 7,518 6,093
Cash at bank and on hand included in FIAFFEIHE 2
assets of disposal group held for sale HEMNEEZ
RITRFHEIRE 12 - 14
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS BN RERERZ
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED RERREZEEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 7,518 6,107

The notes on pages 67 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Ehiket e ES:

GENERAL INFORMATION

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 1102, 11/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (with effect from 7 July 2020).

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies (Cap 622) Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

BE_Z_—F="A=1+—HLFE

—RRE

MREEZKRERAT (TAAE) KE
REZMRIAERRERAE > HEMH
EEE 2P BT o KA B 5F i B R i %
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda’ MA AR ZE AT EE
EMBE AT B E(F A EE6-8RIHEZF L
NENRE H-_Z-_ZF+tAtHEE
2 o

KRB RREER AT - AABKERE
2T EEGF BRI M HBRRMEE320

FEGFHEER

(a) EHEH

I E & RE T IL BT E B A
ERVHREEL (EBHBRE
EA)) > LR BAECEE S g5t
fAg (EBE5HMAT)) Bz
FriaBEBENEBMBFREZEL
ERGEN (EBGEN) &
2R - EEZEERSHERI) &
EBABEG (F6228) 2 BRAW
BEHERY ILEEEMBFHRRIN
HEEAMERZMARAR (T
R #Exs EmRAl (TEmFRAL)
ZHEARBERTE AEBFTIRMNZ
BAGHBREENR T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company'’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

2.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

=

(a)

(b)

EEETEER (@)

AREHR @

ERGHMAGEBEME TR
RIETEBUBFREER  ZEE
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TG R AEE 28REHK-

MHBRRDIZEEENAERERFE
HEERR-

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 34.

2. *

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEE @)

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) Bt 8 A B R JEHERG 2

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the N EMNEIEE RN SR =y R o)
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is AEBRSHEBREEBMAESH
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from NEZHEIREAMIERE=ZEER
its involvement with the entity and has the MR B[Ok BAEMFEBEZ
ability to affect those returns through its power ERNEANTEZELOR BIARE
over the entity. When assessing whether the EEHzZER TaAERERSH
Group has power, only substantive rights (held BN EETEAEE RHEAM
by the Group and other parties) are considered. ANLFFEENER-
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated N—REWEA B 2 & R s
into the consolidated financial statements from # ﬁAZ HEEEE&EH#E&IEEH
the date that control commences until the IRETt AREMBERR EEBLS
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, B -RERAEREURBERR
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised RBPRES 2 E A H AR EF] S
profits arising from intra-group transactions are PR R B AR 5 B 75 i 2 B AR U o
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated HEEBRRZMES 2 RKEHEIR
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting MEARBIR B AR 2 75 0 F LU
from intra-group transactions are eliminated i L R EREE AR

in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity IR m Ty IsM B A B R IER
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or NABIEZNEEEGZE R M
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of REBTREZERRZFE AR
which the Group has not agreed any additional EAEMERIMERME R A EEELR
terms with the holders of those interests which FENTEEHEEER ZEE
would result in the Group as a whole having mA FENEE-

a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income or expenses of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)
(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2. *

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

—
:%T\A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro - rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

2.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)):

- interests in leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property
interest (see note 2(qg));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases
of underlying plant and equipment (see
note 2(g)).

2. *

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Plant, machinery and  5%-33%
equipment

Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%

Office equipment 20%-33%

Computer equipment  20%-33%

Motor vehicles 20%-30%

Over the shorter of
the remaining term
of the lease and the

Leasehold
improvements

estimated useful life
of 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment losses.
Cost includes any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

2. *

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired are
stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

2. *

(f)

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
2(e) and 2(h)(ii)), except for the right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of
the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with note 2(e).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

2. *

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in property, plant and equipment and presents
lease liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables).

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (that is, the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade receivables and other
receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the

following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from possible default events
within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting

date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

2.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

2.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

=

(h)

EEETEER (@)

FEBEREERE (8

()

THITRZIFERR (&

FERBEZEMN ()

THESHEERRES

B L ER B EAEENE
BEZRUTER
- ;E f = m l HH B

SINEZHAME ;

= TR T AR
WEETFR (WMA)
BERNEHEBES
1E;

- BHEANKEXEBE
FRE TR E B
R

7

- Iﬁﬁﬂﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁz%ﬁ e
VBRSO RIRIE

i%@jafj (EEEPNEIES
EERTHERZ
BENBAERTH

2.4
=

RBEEtMTAZHE 8
ﬂﬁ“ﬂﬁ%imz#fﬁﬁ‘?@
AMIEESNEREEET S
P ERREE LT‘IH% i
MTEERBHEREER
R (Blan @ RR AR AR R (5
BRI T



2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECLs
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(q)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (that is,
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

= other intangible asset;

= goodwill;

— deposits and prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiaries in

the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTETHHEK @&

(continued)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEFEREERE (@&
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) M EERE ()
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable

amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of
the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent
of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the term of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2. *

(h)

(i)

Annual Report 2020/21

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

EEETHR (&

EEBEREERE (8

(i) — PRI BERERAE (B)

ERAAERERAEREEE
ZHEGEETERZHABAS
1S (O o BIME 2 I & P AR EA
B1A B 2 W B B R R PR
E H B9 R 1B 5T 1 2 72 B 50
BRIERRLVBE £
MBS Z BEBED
S Q-

55
FERIEHEEZEREDRAUF
HE BESZSHEZLEERRE
o L EBRETEA M
MRTE TR ZEE-

FERMAEP BT R EME 2]
BEAK

[0 1 B S ) NN o=y = )
EATAEREME R A7
ENEZBRMESGRRFTEEZ
HAthpl s o

FIBFFENHEEHBRET 24
ST S BRI AE TR S R EST
HEPMBEZ fhET AR o

3R 2020/21

91



92

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(j)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration,
the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 2(s)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEIHHEE (@)
(continued)

()] Trade and other payables (1 B 5 R HEHMBEMRIA
Trade and other payables are initially B2 REMEBMNREBEYSZARNE
recognised at fair value and are subsequently MR HB LU AT AR > M
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of IR EEMERRIN LSRR
discounting would be immaterial, in which case T BULAR A B BR ©

they are stated at cost.

(m)  Cash and cash equivalents (m) RERREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at REMIREEEYIERITRFER
banks and on hand, demand deposits with EEHRRBTREAMEREE
banks and other financial institutions, and EHITEAO UK AR SRS B
short-term, highly liquid investments readily SHERE - BEABEEFAEMEE
convertible into known amounts of cash and REARB=ZEARIBZEHES
which are subject to an insignificant risk of MEMRE EAaREMERM
changes in value, having been within three SOREREBERERAEERE
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank BIERHEAE D ZRITEZ IS
overdrafts that are repayable on demand ARERREEEMH D - RER
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash & E B YRIEMEE2(h) (i) BT 8
management are also included as a component KILTEHAEEBRE FHEEER)
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of AT o

the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECLs) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

(n) Employee benefits (n) EEEF
(i) Short-term employee benefits and (i) FTHINE S #5871 K FERERAN

contributions to defined contribution BIKET R
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual HFE FRTEA-BFE
leave, contributions to defined 12~ TE B (R FUR AR 5T 2 R
contribution retirement plans and RIEEERAIKE 1R E
the cost of non-monetary benefits EREHEBARTHNEEAN
are accrued in the year in which the Rt WEER MR AAE M
associated services are rendered BREAFE BILEEEE
by employees. Where payment or DUREFER -

settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in
the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium
account or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

2. *

(n)

(o)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

2. *

(o)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEIHEE @)

(continued)

(0) Income tax (continued) (o) FR1ETR (B
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, NEARGRIER B SR R HE B 5
and movements therein, are presented BE% R W B F I o AR KR
separately from each other and are not offset. LEREEEEST A AR HSER
Current tax assets are offset against current BEAETHEREUARRIES ERH
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against AERESE TERFGUTNHE
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or BHERIERT > B A 2B IE A HA
the Group has the legally enforceable right FIRIERIEA R -

to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and = WEBAPRBEBEEREE
liabilities, the Company or the Group IN/NST =N S e
intends either to settle on a net basis, BMEELE NEFERZ
or to realise the asset and settle the BEMBEZEE; X

liability simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and = HWERLERBEEREE

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes ZEBEEMRBBHSAEAR

levied by the same taxation authority —MRBHEARU TER—
on either: BRI ER :

= the same taxable entity; or = B —FERINERE ; X

= different taxable entities, = TRNERRERE

which, in each future period in ZEERTEITE

which significant amounts of HA KBEIRIERIE

deferred tax liabilities or assets BEEEBEENE

are expected to be settled or MEFRIEE B 1 U

recovered, intend to realise the Bl & @R R

current tax assets and settle BRHEEEEIFA

the current tax liabilities on a HREEEREE

net basis or realise and settle AEARIEEE A

simultaneously. RERZEERSE

BzaBe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

2. *

(p)

(q)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. x

(continued)

(q) Revenue and other income (continued) (q)
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more than
12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (that is, the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(ii) Sale of utilities
Revenue is recognised when utilities are
generated and transmitted.

2. *

(q)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(h)(i)).

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

2. *

(r)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. x

(continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies (continued) (r)

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss.

(s) Borrowing costs

(s)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part

of the cost of a qualifying asset commences

when expenditure for the asset is being

incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred

and activities that are necessary to prepare the

asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended

or ceases when substantially all the activities

necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for

its intended use or sale are interrupted or

completed.

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and (t)
discontinued operation

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A
disposal group is a group of assets to
be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (continued)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale
(continued)

When the Group is committed to a
sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the above criteria for
classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as
held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance
with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned
are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and
investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included
in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is
not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (continued)

(i)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a
component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the
rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or when
the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified
as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Related parties

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)

(a)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over
the Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third
entity.

2. FTETE:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

=
,%mA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(i)

(e)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRSs, and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WEEDEHRS

(a) Revenue (a) Y=
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wz 77 HF
Disaggregation of revenue from RIZEEROIRELEN
contracts with customers by major Weadl :

products is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —FTH
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FHERE T
Revenue from contracts ~ HFAMERELENF 15578
with customers within the AZEREHKE
scope of HKFRS 15
Sourcing and sale of metal &K E & BIEY) K8
minerals and related TEERE
industrial materials 492,528 350,898
Production and sale of TERBETERER
industrial products 109,422 130,226
601,950 481,124
Disaggregated by BERZMIBAE DT
geographical location of
customers
- Hong Kong (place of — &% (GEitE)
domicile) - _
- PRC except Hong Kong —HRE (FHERIN 601,950 481,124
601,950 481,124
Revenue from the above categories are Ik Bkt 48 Bl B9 UL R 5R B
recognised at point in time. SRy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

All sales contracts with customers are for
periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these contracts for the
remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations is not disclosed.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments.

(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials;

(ii) Production and sale of industrial
products; and

(iii) Others

Others segment represents business activities
and operating segments not separately
reported, including provision of logistics
services.

The operation of production and sale of utilities
was disposed in the current year. The following
segment information does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operation, which
is described in more detail in note 11.

4. WamkDEHRS (B

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

—
:%T\A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill, other
intangible asset, inventories, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and deferred tax assets of each segment.
Segment liabilities include lease liabilities, trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities of each
segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the chief executive
officer is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, depreciation, finance
costs, income tax expense and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to price charged
to external parties for similar orders.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WERkDEHRS (@)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) SEHRE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TAEEE BEREE (B)
(continued)
The accounting policies of the operating KE Dy G5t BERE 2P it
segments are the same as the Group’s ZAREE 2 G BERAER o
accounting policies described in note 2.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HE_ZT—GFRIZEIZF=A
segments as provided to the Group’s chief —t+—HIEFE REFTAERT
executive officer for the purposes of resources BRBIEERD B R D BRIR
allocation and assessment of segment ZAREEF 2|RDEZERHIIN
performance for the years ended 31 March T 3
2021 and 2020 are set out below:
Continuing operations FFRBA S 2T
2021
—ZZ-&
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
RER
HEER fER
B4 R AR A HETER
TEEH Efm Hith Wt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKs'000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue REINAERZ
from external customers  FI2 R EE M 492,528 109,422 - 601,950
Reportable segment profit ~ °J 2 R 4EE A 2,615 7,657 - 10,272
Depreciation for property, ~ #J¥ BB KRR EITE
plant and equipment - (8,130) - (8,130)
Depreciation for FCHREBERE
right-of-use assets - (5,833) - (5,833)
Finance costs RE A (40) (1,843) - (1,883)
Income tax expense FrEmmEE - (3,075) (3) (3,078)
Reportable segment assets ]2 RDEEE 663,445 260,629 9 924,083
Additions to non-current  ERREIERE
segment assets during the D EBE
year - 1,227 - 1,227
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 23k 45 & & (370,721) (93,764) (3,832) (468,317)
Annual Report 2020/21 £ %§ 2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WEHkDEHRS (@
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TEEEE BEREE (B)
(continued)
2020
ZETE
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
RERHEE fER
EBENK HETXH
HETER Em Hitr st
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue RESMAZE 2
from external customers ] 2R M S 350,898 130,226 = 481,124
Reportable segment profit ] 2% A 674 13,845 - 14,519
Depreciation for property, Y% BB R REITE
plant and equipment - (8,633) - (8,633)
Depreciation for right-of-use FFREEERE
assets - (6,029) - (6,029)
Finance costs RE M A (2,058) (183) - (2,241)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEMiE%,/ () 40 (3461) 3 (3418)
Reportable segment assets ]2 RDEEE 393,107 179,902 1,689 574,698
Additions to non-current  ERRE IERE
segment assets during NEEE
the year - 11,683 - 11,683
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 2 R & & (253,679) (25,084) (3,592) (282,355)

There are no inter-segment sales during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

HE_ T - FR-_ZTEFF=
B=+—BIEEFE  WESFEBH

o

=
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

Wk RS (&

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, AE2RNERE BN -BE -8&
profit, assets, liabilities and other items: REMIEE 2 HEK :
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEHF
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FFRBEE 2T
Revenue Yz
Total reportable segment revenue  B] 2R 48U w5 42 %E 601,950 481,124
Elimination of inter-segment Eabepak il Ean
revenue - =
Consolidated revenue FREW 601,950 481,124
Profit il
Total reportable segment profit REAEBEINATRZ
derived from the Group’s 2R E R 4L
external customers 10,272 14,519
Other net income H A F 58 2,238 18,860
Depreciation for right-of-use Rt ERERMERFTAZ
assets of reportable segment RN ECFERAREE
not included in measurement of e
segment profit (70) (69)
Loss allowance on trade FEW B 2 R I8 k5 18
receivables (469) (1,022)
Loss allowance on other Hih W RIB A B EE
receivables (430) (314)
Impairment loss on non-controlling  JEIER& HE & R E E5 18
interests (690) (624)
Written down of inventories FEEMUR (2,263) =
Loss on deregistration of a sHEEME A R 1R
subsidiary - (278)
Finance costs BB A (1,883) (2,380)
Unallocated head office and ROFCARMER R
corporate expenses rEMZ
— Depreciation for property, —E - -BERKZEITE
plant and equipment (657) (2,074)
- Depreciation for right-of-use —EREEENE
assets (1,105) (4,565)
- Staff costs (including directors’ — BT A
emoluments) (BIEEEF) (9,349) (15,635)
- Others —HAth (7,506) (8,847)
Consolidated loss before taxation 4= & BRI ATES 18 (11,912) (2,429)
Annual Report 2020/21 % 2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit, assets, liabilities and other items:

(continued)

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

W Ry RS (&

(b) SERE (&)

2R D af - EE8E
REMIBEEZHER © (&)

2021 2020
T —F t- St 222
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations IR E T
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets AE2RDEEERE 924,083 574,698
Elimination of inter-segment 55 > 48 [ e R B
receivable - -
924,083 574,698
Unallocated head office and RAOPRMEREREEEE
corporate assets
- Cash and cash equivalents —RERIREEEY 7,518 6,093
- Others —Hfh 46,165 4,029
Consolidated total assets REBEERE 977,766 584,820
Liabilities aE
Total reportable segment liabilities B] 2R 48 & S48 %8 468,317 282,355
Elimination of inter-segment DB R RIE
payable - -
468,317 282,355
Unallocated head office and AORBMEREREEEE
corporate liabilities
- Others —Hfh 4,113 3,825
Consolidated total liabilities mEAaERTE 472,430 286,180
Other items Hthigg
Depreciation for property, M BB KRR EITE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total 2R IEERE 8,130 8,633
Unallocated head office and RO ERE R
corporate total ==k 657 2,074
Consolidated total e 4ERE 8,787 10,707
Depreciation for right-of-use assets A& ETE
Reportable segment total 2RO LELEEE 5,833 6,029
Unallocated head office and RO ERE R
corporate total EEAEEE 1,105 4,565
Consolidated total RE4EEE 6,938 10,594
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI
BE_E_—F=-HB=+—HLEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

Wm R 7 RS (48)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, AE2RNERE BN -BE -8&
profit, assets, liabilities and other items: REMIBEZHIK . (@)
(continued)
2021 2020
e —ECTEF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FFEREER (B
(continued)
Other items (continued) HIEe (&)
Income tax expense TS
Reportable segment total ﬂziﬁﬁ*ﬁz' b 3,078 3,418
Unallocated head office and ROECAAMER &
corporate total JL¥W§E - =
Consolidated total REiEEE 3,078 3,418
Additions to non-current segment FERREBEIERI DEEE
assets during the year
Reportable segment total 2RO LEEEE 1,227 11,683
Unallocated head office and Ko BCAE #ﬂ#%)ﬁ&
corporate total 40 RE - 178
Consolidated total IREAEER 1,227 11,861
Revenue from major products and services FEERRREZ Ko

The following is an analysis of the Group's

U BAEERBEEZEMmZ W

revenue from its major products: SR i
2021 2020
—E % 2=
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FFAEAS TS
Metal minerals and related industrial & B 1EY) &iBRE T2 RE
materials 492,528 350,898
Industrial products TERESR 109,422 130,226
601,950 481,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill
and other intangible asset. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the products were delivered. The
geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets is based
on the physical location of the assets under
consideration. In the case of goodwill and other
intangible asset, it is based on the location of
the operation to which they are allocated.

4.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

W R RS (48)

(b)

FEEE @)
HEEH

TREIWAEEREIRERZ
Wk ; Re(iAEBYZE - BB KRR
B EREEE BEREMER
BEERMBUBEI DO -&ZR
ZHBUEDRRINEmZUES]
DeoME-BERRERERESR
EZMBUENRBAEREEZ
BERUES D sl E KAMER
BEM= MEBERFEDRZKE
EXEGHREMERID -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIINRERZUWE EREBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
B EBEEZF B _Z_ZH
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET FET FAET
Continuing FEREER
operations
Hong Kong (place of & (X 2h)
domicile) - = 93 2,024
PRC except Hong Kong FE (FA&BRSMN 601,950 481,124 60,476 43,389
601,950 481,124 60,569 45,413
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI
BE_E_—F=-HB=+—HLEE

(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Wm R 7 RS (48)

(b)

DERE (B

BEHLTEERZEN

HAEEBHETE10%I U L2

or more of the total sales of the Group are as BT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF
HKs’000 HKS000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FHERE T
Customer A (note (i) BEA (B1520) 109,422 130,226
Customer B (note (ii) = RB (ff (i) 369,522 305,712
Notes: Vo2

i) Revenue from the above customer arose
from the businesses of production and sale
of industrial products for the years ended 31

March 2021 and 2020.

ii) Revenue from the above customer arose from
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

i) BE_ TS ER_ZTHE
=A=+—HLEE > bl%E
FzW@mbREBEEREET

ERHEM-

ii) BE_E_ K _BE_FF
=B=+—HLEE > tHx
FEzZWmBEERERIEES
BUEY R ABRE TR RE TS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

5. OTHER NET INCOME 5. HfthilgAFEE
2021 2020
T —fF “EBEIBE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FHBIRE ¥
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZF B A - 115
Interest income on loan receivable FEWE R 2 F] B U A 354 336
Total interest income on financial REHERAtE SHEE
assets measured at amortised cost ZHBURA 48 RE 354 451
Sundry income FEIEUWA 3,401 24
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ER (58 IR F4E (1,571) 16,413
Fair value gain on derivative mEEmIAZ
financial instruments NN G
- forward foreign exchange contracts —ZRMNE S L - 1,896
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BEMLEZ
plant and equipment U &= - 76
Government grant (note) B #EAL (f52) 54 =
2,238 18,860
Note: Htat -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Government of HKSAR. The purpose of the funding is to
provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under
the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees (2020: nil).

BE_S_—&#=B=+—HLtEE F£H
R FEEARERFENSHERES TR
2R EA I ESH BRI E-ES 2 ENAD
ERHMBEZEUREAATHWERNES -
EzEMNERT AEEREERSBN LIS
HEPRT SR ERIBBFED 2 EEERAR
TNREEIE (CE_SF &) o

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. [RIRAIESIE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRAGAIEBIBENRR Gt A) FoISE !
(crediting) the followings:
2021 2020
—s-—f —=oms
HKS’000 HKS'000
F#ET FAET
Continuing operations KBRS
(a) Finance costs (a) FEERA
Bills discount charges EIRAIRE A 40 2,058
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBHE 1,846 322
Total interest expense on financial W IR A nEE AR
liabilities not at fair value through mZERMEEZA
profit or loss B 42 1,886 2,380

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

6. [RIRAIESIE (&)

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

BRI E NG GtA) TARE:

(crediting) the followings: (continued) (&)
2021 2020
—EZ—fF “EBEOBE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations (continued) FEREEE (@
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BT
emoluments) (BIREEHM)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREM
B 20,921 29,365
Contributions to defined contribution TERE TR IRET 2
retirement plans 2= 2,828 3,012
23,749 32,377
() Other items (c) HERg
Cost of inventories FEE A 590,884 463,582
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z & B & B 680 1,040
Depreciation for property, MR R
plant and equipment e 8,787 10,707
Depreciation for right-of-use assets EREEERE 6,938 10,594
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary sTIEM B A B 518 - 278
Loss allowance on trade receivables FEW E R IBE 18
i 469 1,022
Loss allowance on other receivables Hh ek IE k518
B 430 314
Impairment loss on non-controlling FEER R R E RS 1B
interests 690 624
Written down of inventories ZEMOR 2,263 _
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWZE BE KK
plant and equipment - o5 - V(0 §) 172 (76)
Cost of inventories, being the carrying # FERA (AIEEEFEZRE

amount of inventories sold, included
HK$27,793,000 (2020: HK$28,439,000)
relating to staff costs and depreciation for
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020
which amounts were also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately
in notes 6(b) and 6(c) for each of these types
of expenses.

B aEgE_S_ K _F
—EE-A=+—HLEEZ
BB T A KT E27,793,000
BTt (T Z T E 5 28,439,000/
70 BB EME X RS
B 5T A B R B 5E6(b) B26(c)FRr
WE 2 S IBHREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. KREBETERZAER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) FeEERZAAERE
profit or loss represents:
Continuing operations FriBiE 2R
2021 2020
B —ETEF
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Current tax AHEATRIE
—Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENIR W2a6)
(note (i) - -
—PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —HE{ZFFER
(note (ii)) (TEZFREH)
(1 &3Gi)) 2,326 3,461
2,326 3,461
Under/(Over)-provision of prior year #BEEEEELRE,
(FBEBHE )
-Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNER - (40)
-PRCEIT —HHRE R EMER 749 -
Deferred tax iR 18
Origination and reversal of HREEZEE REE
temporary differences (Hta£26(b)(i))
(note 26(b)(i)) 3 (3)
Total “ast 3,078 3,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (continued)
Notes:

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
as the Group has no assessable profits for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

(ii) PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at
25% (2020: 25%).

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or
10% and withheld by PRC entities.

(iii) The Group is not subject to any taxation
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa,
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

(a)

iR E MBS R R MY sE

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

(ii)

(iii)

BHEEmRZAEHR (B)

mRZFIRE | (@

EFK%I&i_v_—E&

ToRFE=-RA=+—HILF
FE 3 f FEERAR G o A0 B 5t
BEBMER

h E B B A B 3% 25% 10 X 45 4R
FREGEFRER (CE_Z4F
25%) ©

1R 5% B B B0 ke B R IR 75 48 /5 Bt
& BN 20085155
HNELEEREIINEKREED
KERZZEZNFE—HF—HAl
BEE 2 im A R A R A AN TR D
MeoZBEAEERMNFTD
k2 R B BIZER5%E10% 2 i1
RN EFRFER LHPE
ﬁ‘ﬁiﬁ\ﬂ]"

FEERBE_T_—FR_
STE-RA=+t—HILEE
HHAMBERE - BEEE -HE
BHENEBEREBZEARE
BHMIERIRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBEZRZAAFR (@)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) (b) RIESZY  (E%) BEstEiERE
and accounting loss at the applicable tax RAREHERIBENEEER :
rates:

2021 2020
ZEZ—5F TEITE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18
— from continuing operations —REFESEER (11,912) (2,429)
- from discontinued operation —REBARIEEEER (3,404) (17,318)
(15,316) (19,747)
Notional tax on loss before FRINEIEIE 2 B RNIE
taxation, calculated at the BB AMPTERE
domestic income tax rate of 16.5%5T &
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (CEZ5F 116.5%) (2,527) (3,258)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR Z HZ B E
expenses 3,815 1,660
Tax effect of non-taxable income ~ RetERMURA 2 R F & (1,739) (3,406)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~ EHMMRIBE A EFFESE
from other tax jurisdictions MEER2FE (103) (435)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 MIBE1E 3,314 8,985
Under/(over) provision BEEERERE
in prior years (FBEBHE M) 749 (6,295)
Others Hth (431) 352
Actual tax expense/(credit) BERIERY (E%R) 3,078 (2,397)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BERBEEBATMEAIEIBMERAE (K
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BESFEER) ROE28FURBENE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information =m0
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2021
—E--F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
&
R BIKET
ik BHE HIBTEAL BEEE it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Sin Lik Man RN ((TEAE )

(Chief Executive) - 2,760 230 18 3,008
Ms. Sun Le 7t 3o - 1,800 150 15 1,965
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. Sun Di I Vikogn 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors EIFEHRITESE
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wang Ye FEEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Wan Johnson B g b ol (S 2

(appointed on 1 October 2020 and +B—BEZELR

resigned on 25 February 2021 and “E--#£"F°+%H

with effect from 1 September 2021) HE BIZZ—F

NA—BEEH) 75 - - - 75
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David BERET (RIZZEF
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and ZA=+—H&E
with effect from 1 October 2020) TEZEZEF
+A—RRER) 289 - - - 289
704 4,560 380 33 5,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EEME (&)

2020
“Z°ZF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary Severance scheme
Fees in kind bonuses pay contributions Total
ETE
IR BIRER
ik ENHE BBTEAL BHE BEGE st
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000
FAET FAET FET FET FAET FET
Executive directors HiTESR
Mr. Sin Lik Man KAXFKE (TEAH)
(Chief Executive) - 2,760 230 - 18 3,008
Mr. Li Zhendong FRREE(RZE—IE
(resigned on 6 September 2019) NARB#FE - 882 - - 9 891
Ms. Sun Le HELtT (RZE3—h&
(appointed on 15 November 2019) +—A+HEHEZA) - 680 19 - = 699
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Zheng Gang HEEE R —hE
(resigned on 1 December 2019) +ZB—BFfD) 428 - - 321 = 749
Ms. Sun Di REzt (RZB—h&
(appointed on 6 September 2019) hARBESRE 28 - - - - 28
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFFRTES
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George REELERZTZE
(resigned on 1 February 2020) “B—H&f® 428 - - 257 = 685
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick HERREM-2-RE
(resigned on 1 February 2020) ZB—B#® 428 - - 257 - 685
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David SRERT(RI2TEF
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and —A=+—HET
with effect from 1 October 2020) TEZE-ZTE
TA—BEER) 578 - - - - 578
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTRL(RZE—NE
(resigned on 1 December 2019) +ZB—HED 342 - = 257 = 599
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RERMAEERZBIEE
(appointed on 1 February 2020) “A—BEZM 40 = = = = 40
Mr.Wang Ye TELE (RZZIZE
(appointed on 1 February 2020) —B—BEZM®) 8 - - - - 8
2,280 4,322 249 1,092 27 7970

No director of the Company has waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group for the years ended

31 March 2021 and 2020.

BE_Z_—FR_ZBEF=-_RB=+—
HIEFE  ARABZEZHERE T A
ToMAEETERAENESIAREN
EEME  FRREMARERIMALR

S E S B2 o
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2020: two) are directors of the Company whose

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

REMAL

rERLRESHFNALH ma (CEZ
TE  WR) REARBRNES HME 2N

emoluments are disclosed in notes 8 and 30. The A8 BE - HG =% (CE & =

aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining three %) BRE A T2 ES 4R8I T ¢
(2020: three) individual are as follows:

2021 2020

g% T I

HKs’000 HKS'000

FAET FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYH T 1,760 3,810

Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 146 130

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R RAEF) 5t 2] {3 54 38

1,960 3,978

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

=% (CEIEE
M <= B 5 T HIAR R

=% EsFMALZ

2021 2020
—B-—F —E_BF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A&
HKS$nil — HK$500,000 =BT E500,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,001757T % 1,000,0007E 75 2 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 21,500,000
HTT - 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 22,000,000
HTT - 1
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to BHE_ T FKR_BEEF=ZF=4+—
any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement BIEFE > A% B & A E A &S A

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

10.

IXNHENEAME ERRFMAE
EEWMALTERF RENBERAHE -
HEI%\

EFETERRNBE_T - —Fk™
—EBF=H=+—H JJ:EEEZEHHQE e

Annual Report 2020/21 % 2020/21

127



128

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

11.

MR M

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities

On 11 September 2019, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of entire equity interests in
Ningxia Tianyuan Power Generation Company Limited
(“Power Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which carried out all of the Group’s
operation of production and sale of utilities, at a
consideration of RMB169,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$184,717,000). The disposal was
completed on 16 June 2020. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Group has received the first to
third part of the consideration of approximately
RMB132,476,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,693,000) after deducting income tax as stated
in the sale agreement.

11.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

ERLEEERS
HELERBEARERES

RIE—NENB+—H &NEETIL—
EIHE 3 (FEB AR #169,000,0007t (18
21 49184,717,00087T) HEX ARG EE
Mﬂ:’z}ﬁTE‘%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(@ﬂ@
B HERAERNEMEERBEE AR
EmER) 2E2HRE-LEBREE
EXNBtARARB -BE_Z_—45=1
=t+—HIEEE AEBERIZHEER
EABEZABHNE—ZEFE =39 KKk
FriS8 1) 49 A B 16132,476,0007T (FHE
#9156,693,00058 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11.
(continued)

BRILEEER (B)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of HELERHEARAERER (B
utilities (continued)
The results of the discontinued operation included in

the loss for the year are set out below.

TREIFAFNBENSRILEEER
ZHME-

For the period

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020 For the year
(date of ended
disposal) 31 March 2020
—EIEF
MA—BE
—EIEF #HE
~A+7<H TEIRE
(HEBQ) =B=+—H
HiME IFFE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Revenue & 13,112 155,218
Cost of sales HE B (15,875) (172,931)
Gross loss EFiE (2,763) (17,713)
Other net income HMUK A P58 - 1,443
Administrative expenses THHEZ (593) (545)
Other operating expenses H&ERE - (32)
Loss from operation K& R (3,356) (16,847)
Finance costs =N (48) (471)
Loss before taxation PRI A B 18 (3,404) (17,318)
Income tax credit PSRk % - 5,815
Loss after taxation FRIRBES18 (3,404) (11,503)
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary HEWB QB ZRPIERE
after income tax 518 (19,605) =
Loss for the period/year from discontinued Z~A ST #A AFE(S
operation and attributable to owners of BARIEREETR
the Company R FEREIE (23,009) (11,503)
Annual Report 2020/21 £ %§ 2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz o =

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. B#I1E

(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities (continued)

mExER (@

HELERHEAAERES (B

Loss before taxation from discontinued operation BARILEKREEBRNFRAIEESEUTS

includes the following: |

For the period

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020 For the year
(date of ended
disposal) 31 March 2020
—BEF
.ﬁ BE
ZEZTHE #HE
~B+7<H —EIEHF
(HEHE) =B=+—H
HARE IFFE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZFEWA - 1
Sundry income HEIEUWA - 1,442
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEZHE 48 471
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 1,862 11,744
Contributions to defined contribution TR FUR AT B Z 13
retirement plans 628 3,821
Staff costs BTHA 2,490 15,565
Cost of inventories * EE A 15,875 172,931
Depreciation for property, plant and ME -BERKZEITE
equipment 2,811 21,506
Depreciation for right-of-use assets TREEEITE 773 4,748
3,584 26,254
Loss allowance on trade receivables FEWE SR I8k 185 E - 32
Written off of property, D EE ~ BB B 5% B 8
plant and equipment 421 -

i Cost of inventories, being the carrying amount of #

inventories sold, included HK$6,039,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2020: HK$41,334,000) relating to
staff costs and depreciation for the period from 1
April 2020 to 16 June 2020 (date of disposal) which
amounts were also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately for each of these types
of expenses.

FERE (AIBEFSZREE) 81
—ETEFENA—HRE_E_ZF8
+AB (LEHH HEEREINAE
R EE 26,039,000 T (HE_Z—Z
F=ZB=+—HLFE : 41,334,000
70) > BRMIEIN S B BRI 5T A
DR E 2 S IB4EEET
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of

utilities (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

11. B#

g

For the period

2% (@

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

HELERHEARERES (B

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020 For the year
(date of ended
disposal) 31 March 2020
—_BEFR
.ﬁ BHE
ZEIEHE #HE
~NB+7<H —EIEHF
(HEBE) =B=+—H
HAME IFFE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Cash flows from discontinued operation REBKRILEEEFENEE
/IILE
Net cash generated from RERE R ZIREFER
operating activities 878 4,569
Net cash generated from/(used in) B/ (AR REESHZ
investing activities (for the period from RE38E (CE2ETER
1 April 2020 to 16 June 2020 (date ME—BEZZ24
of disposal) includes an inflow of ~NA+7<B (LEBH)
HK$52,438,000 from the disposal of the i BELENB AR
subsidiary) 23 A52,438,00078 7T) 52,438 (170)
Net cash used in financing activities BrmEEEs 2 RSP (825) (4,597)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash generated 2R E i B A T8I
by a subsidiary WM, (i) B8 52,491 (198)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. BAARLEREER (8)

(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities (continued)

For the period

HELERHEAAERES (B

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020 For the year
(date of ended
disposal) 31 March 2020
ZEIEE
mA—HBZE
—EZE HE
A~A+RHE —ECREF
(HEBH) =B=+—H
HARE IFFE
Loss per share SEE
Basic and diluted, from discontinued BEARKEE REEKIE
operation KR
(HK cent per share) (=52 A1) (0.109) (0.054)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share
from discontinued operation are based on:

BETIRIEFE

For the period

EBRIEEEXEZ 2 BRESREBEBIRT

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020 For the year
(date of ended
disposal) 31 March 2020
TR
MA—BE
—TERE S
~B+7<H —EIEHF
(HEHE) =B=+—H
HAR IFFE
Loss attributable to owners of KABHER ANELBEALE
the Company from discontinued KEEF 2 B8 (F4E7T)
operation (HKS'000) (23,009) (11,503)
Weighted average number of ordinary BRsTESREAREE
shares in issue during the year used in the E53EZFR
basic and diluted loss per share BETEERMETIEH
calculation (note 27(b)) (HizE27(b)) 21,084,072,140 21,084,072,140
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of

utilities (continued)
Details of the disposal of the subsidiary

11. B&1E

LEMREA B ZF1E

For the period
from 1 April
2020 to

16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
—E_EF
mA—BZE
—E-TH
~A+7<H
(HERE)
HARE
HK$’000
FHT

2% (@

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

HELERHEARERES (B

For the
year ended
31 March 2020

#E
—BIEHF
=R=+—H
IEFE
HK$'000
THET

Consideration received or receivable:
Cash

Total disposal consideration
Carrying amount of net assets sold

Gain on disposal before income tax and
reclassification of foreign exchange
differences

Reclassification of foreign exchange
differences

Income tax expense

Loss on disposal after income tax

BRI ERAE :
R

HEAERER
EHEBEEFEZREE

FRPRSIRAT R B D4R
EREEAM

& e
ENORERER
PRISTR RS2

FRATSIE 2 HERIR

Annual Report 2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities (continued)
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

11. BEAIEKEERE (&)

HELERHEAAERES (B

BEERBENRHERR CE2TFRA

date of disposal (16 June 2020) were: +778) ZEREEA !

16 June 2020

—BEF

~A+7xH

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment MEBRERRE 139,302
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,864
Inventories =78 3,920
Trade receivables FEW & 5 18 55,911
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR RIE & R H MU R IE 17,580
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEEEY 36
Total assets BERE 220,613
Trade payables FE1T B 5718 (9,514)
Accruals, deposits and other payables FESTE B s Rk EMERIE (23,169)
Lease liabilities HEaR (4,007)
Total liabilities BEEE (36,690)
Net assets BEFE 183,923
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 12. HEHEZHEHR
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's BHE_Z_ZF-HA=+—BItFE"
management was committed to a plan to sell Power AEEBEBRAONSAEEHESE ’z}ﬂ °
Company. Accordingly, Power Company is presented AL BENRAB RN AFEHEZHE
as a disposal group held for sale. The disposal was AeBAHEER T ZZTERA +/\E|
completed on 16 June 2020. During the year ended ERoBEE—F=HB=+—HIF
31 March 2021, the Group has received the first to B -AEREKRIHEEBZEMBFZAEDN
third part of the consideration of approximately F—EFE=H @MNFAERE) AR
RMB132,476,000 (equivalent to approximately #132,476,0007T (1HE 71 #V156,693,00075
HK$156,693,000) after deducting income tax as stated JT) °©
in the sale agreement.
At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the disposal group N TE I FERIEBEIEE= H +—
comprised the following assets and liabilities. B> HEHR EEL/(—F,S\EEZE B
2021 2020
ZEZ—F TEIIE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) ¥ BB RHE (1:215) - 142,369
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 4,632
Inventories 78 - 295
Trade receivables FEW B 57018 - 50,675
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables F8 157018 « #% & K
H At e R IE - 24,075
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY - 14
Assets held for sale HIEtHEERE - 222,060
Trade payables FE (4 B 5 7718 - (8,514)
Accruals, deposits and other payables EStER ek
H A& 7RIE - (21,656)
Lease liabilities HEaE - (4,778)
Liabilities directly associated with the FEHE B ERE
assets held for sale HEAMEE - (34,948)

Cumulative income or expenses included in other
comprehensive income

Cumulative expense of HKSNil (2020: HK$17,638,000),
being exchange differences relating to the disposal
group classified as held for sale has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and included in equity.

stAEMEE D2 B 5t AR

EROBEAFEHEZHEMARNZ Rt
HEZTBT (CEZF 1 17,638,000/8 7T)
(EIJE P ER) BN E M2 U R R
D‘I’)\ﬁ&/\o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EkEE
a) Basic loss per share a) SREXEE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the SREXRGERERNRBES A
loss for the year attributable to owners of the EFENEGBRUEANBETER
Company by the weighted average number of RGN BT & -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2021 2020
T ZETEF
Continuing operations EREET
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable to A HEE AELER
owners of the Company 518 (FE7)
(HKS'000) (14,898) (5,395)
Number of shares K EE
Weighted average number of BEITEBERMETEH
ordinary shares in issue 21,084,072,140 21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share BREXEIE
(HK cent per share) L= (0.071) (0.026)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 13. SkEE (@
Basic loss per share (continued) a) SRELREE (B)
2021 2020
T —fF T E4EF
Discontinued operation BARIEEEEF
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable RNAE R AFEL
to owners of the Company FENEE (FE7T)
(HKS'000) (23,009) (11,503)
Number of shares K EE
Weighted average number of BETEERK
ordinary shares in issue MEFIHE 21,084,072,140  21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share BREXNEE
(HK cent per share) (52 A) (0.109) (0.054)
Continuing and discontinued FEREXRRERILERE
operations E¥
Loss E518
Loss for the year attributable RAB B AELFER
to owners of the Company 18 (FE&71)
(HKS'000) (37,907) (16,898)
Number of shares &8
Weighted average number of BETEER
ordinary shares in issue N#E 21,084,072,140  21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share SREXREE
(HK cent per share) =593 (0.180) (0.080)

b)

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 is the same as the basic
loss per share as there is no potential ordinary

shares outstanding during the years.

b) SiRiEEHE

HRERLEEEEEBRERT

FHEE_ZT_—

FERHRIBEE

FZA=T—HLEFEZESkK#HE
BRESREREEMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
77 o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

14.

T F5 8k =M 5E

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

14.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

B SR AEF

FEESBRBEEBERBEONEEMER
EERBEBRFMERBZSERM > 2
HHEBESSERFIMEATBESE (T8
BEst8l)) RBETFEI A —ERBILE
SEA BRI E MR IREE - RIFRE
B BEREEHBEREERRMG
5%Z R BB FHER - EEIREESH
ZHAREE EIRAE F1,500%8 7w HiZP] B
FEMRR 5t8) Z fERBI RS R ©

AEET2E-—BEREMZERXEER
HREMNE - AEBZFENBRAEEE
19 7% F R B B 48 2 B SR E IR AR IR AR A
SEIZNE - ZEMBAB AR IEMNAE
ZIEB D LERBRIRER FHEI MR R
BRABR KRB E - AEE R IKEF 5B
ZH—BEEFHIEE MR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ME- -BER=E
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) ME--BRE KR E
Plant,
machinery Furniture Construction
and and Office Computer Motor  Leasehold in
equipment fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
iR AER

R GRERKE WAERE  BERE RE MENERE  ARIR gt
HKSO00  HKSODO  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSUOD  HKSUDD  KKSOOO  HKSTOOO
TE7 TEm TE7 TE7 TE7 TEm TE7 TE7

Cost 23
At 1 April 2019 RZ2-NENA-A 264,748 939 9412 937 1,636 3676 9336 290,684
Additions ME 11,689 = 18 7 = = 147 11,861
Transfer from CIP TRIREA 166 - - - - - (166) -
Disposal 5 (1) - - 0] (698) - - (706)
Reclassified as held for sale BTN EAFFHE
(note 12) (Wiiz) (197,952) = (7,258) - = - 439 (209553)
Effectof foreigncurency ~ ERERZEE
exchange differences (17,767) (20) (611) (5) (64) (22) (616) (19,105)
At31 March 2020 and RIZBE
1 April 2020 =A=1+-Hk
—2°2FMA-A 60,883 919 1,561 932 874 3,654 4,358 73,181
Additions e 287 - - - - - 940 1,227
Disposal HE 6) (487) (87) (5) - (3:359) - (3,944)
Effect of foreign curency ~ EREERZF2
exchange differences 5,072 2% 114 6 73 25 393 5,707
At31 March 2021 RIB_-—%&
=B=+-H 66,236 456 1,588 933 947 320 5,691 76,171
Accumulated depreciation Bzt E R fE
and impairment
At 1 April 2019 RZ2-nENA-H 67,916 555 5860 481 1,269 1338 = 771419
Charge for the year EEEfR 28,087 158 2,081 200 17 1670 - 32213
Disposal HE = - - U] (350) - - (357)
Reclasified as held for sale ~ EX7 DB A {FHE
(note 12) (W) (60,667) = (6517) = = - - (67,184)
Effectof foreigncurency ~ ERER7FE
exchange differences (5171) (19 (432) (0] (62) (1) - (5,689)
At31 March 2020 and RIBZZE
1 April 2020 =A=1+-Hk
—2-2FMF-A 30,165 694 992 670 874 3,007 - 36,402
Charge for the year EEEfR 7722 67 416 191 - 391 - 8,787
Elimination on disposal REEHH (3) (345) (62) B) - (3:359) - (3772)
Effect offoreign curency ~ EREEZE2E
exchange differences 2,762 2% 86 5 73 2 - 2,952
At31 March 2021 RIE-%
=A=1+-H 40,646 440 1432 863 947 Q - 44,369
Carrying amounts iREfE
At31 March 2021 RIB_—%&
=B=+-H 25,590 16 156 70 - 279 5,691 31,802
At31 March 2020 RIZDE
=A=t+-H 30,718 225 569 262 - 647 4358 36,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME- -BEKRRE (&
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- HEMEEENS D FRAREE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as REFEZDHAOF :
follows:
2021 2020
I TETEE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET

Ownership interests in leasehold FEERBEE K
land and buildings held for own BFNEEEER

use, carried at depreciated cost (ZITERATIER)
with remaining lease term of: FIERTEER % -
- Between 22 and 40 years ——+FFN+£F 3,359 3,169

Other leasehold land and buildings Efth B AHEE Lt KRigF
leased for own use, carried at (I E M AT ER)
depreciated cost 25,408 5,465

28,767 8,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ME-BER=E (&)
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FREEE @
The analysis of expense items in relation to Rigm sl Bl EEENESE
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BzAWmamT :
2021 2020
—E-—& —somE
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Depreciation charge for right-of-use 1% 1BREE E4BH ) H 2
assets by class of underlying asset: fFABEEEZINELH !
Ownership interests in leasehold HETHEREFH
land and building R EER 70 69
Other leasehold land and buildings EfthBAHEE Lt KiEF
leased for own use 6,868 10,525
6,938 10,594
Interest on lease liabilities HMESGHE #ite)
(note 6(a)) 1,846 322

Expense relating to short-term leases £248 HAFH & & Fl &R FE 47
and other leases with remaining RERN 2 AIAERN
lease term ending on or before HAERRNMAX
end of the year 740

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets

ER-EREEEEMEASN

were approximately HK$25,790,000 (2020: 25,790,000/87C (ZE"ZF | T8
HK$Nil). JT) °
The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was A —TE - —FHENRES M

HK$7,245,000 (2020: HK$13,677,000).
13,677,0005 7T) ©

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set
out in note 25. 25°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz o =

16.

MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

GOODWILL 16. HE
2021 2020
—E-—%F  C"Z-ZF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Cost X Zs
At beginning and at end of the year REDRER 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss RetiR(ERE
At beginning and at end of the year RER R ER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount IREE - -
Others segment: Hithor4a :

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing,
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong
and PRC, and included under others segment. The
management considered Shing Kee International
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL”) together with its
subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics & Warehousing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation of f5352 /&R
g ORI BIR/AE]) (“Sealand”) (collectively the
“SKIL Group”) is the CGU for allocation of goodwill as
synergies are derived in such arrangement.

BREASME  BEDROREREE
TEU (HEBREBRPELEYRE
HoAEeE -BERKEERE KA
HMDEET - BEEERR > B ERY
MERERAR (TBELBIEY M) RH
MEARBLEEYRAE CRID ARA
8 (BBl (MBI Ry RE
B) BORBEZREELEM HAR
BRI BEr] EE W R W o
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

17. HthEREE

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

Customer
relationship
ZER%
HKS'000
FAET
Cost 7
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April RIZZE—AFHEBE—H -ZZTZZHF
2020 and 31 March 2021 —B=T—H -ZFEZTFNA—HK
B2 —F=HA=+—H 4,202
Accumulated amortisation and EtEHRRE
impairment
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April RIE—HAFHNA—H - ZZ2ZZF
2020 and 31 March 2021 ZB=+—B -T2 ZFUE—HK
—E-—#=g=+—H 4,202
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2021 A _E_—F=HA=+—H -
At 31 March 2020 A _E_TFE=H=+—H -
INVENTORIES 18. F&
2021 2020
—E-—F —TITH
HK$’000 HKs'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 1 18
Finished goods &Pl 31,234 35,461
31,275 35,479

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

RARARL AR FESEZOMAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTH

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FAET

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 590,884 463,582
Written down of inventories FE MR 2,263 -
593,147 463,582
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

19.

SRR M=

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES FEY & Z I8
2021 2020
B TE T
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEU & Z =18 520,927 328,618
Less: Loss allowance B EEEE (1,664) (1,095)
519,263 327,523

All of the trade receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Note:
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade receivables based on the invoice date or shipment date
and net of loss allowance is as follows:

FRERWE ZRNERRRK AR —FRI
=B

BRE DA

UTFAREEHRRERAHNEEHHET
Z W E FIE FIRREREE) ZRE D

2021 2020

—E=-F —
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHETT
0 - 60 days 0—60H 26,277 26,819
61 - 120 days 61—120H 23,909 16,047
121 - 180 days 121—180H 91,256 87,588
181 - 360 days 181—360H 351,096 197,069
Over 360 days 88360 H 26,725 =
519,263 327,523

Trade receivables are usually due within 360 days
(2020: 360 days) from invoice date or shipment date.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note
29(a).

B SHIEES AN S EHINBE H A
513608 (ZZE-Z 4 ! 360H) AT AEE S
ERRKERNESREEENEERMZE
— e IEE I M 5E29(a) ©
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FAFIE-HREREMERKRIE

RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—fF T E4E
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling interest [& I 3 125 B% 1 2 7018
(note (a)) (K1t (@) 7,252 6,899
Other receivables Hith e =Ia 64,273 1,425
Trade deposits paid (note (d)) BB ST (HaE ) 293,121 165,157
Other deposits and prepayments HitiZe RFANRIEB 2,300 3,497
Other tax prepayments (note (c)) HhFaRIE B2 ) 194 178
Less: Loss allowance (notes (a) and (b)) o IR
(Ht5%(a) % b)) (8,040) (6,888)
359,100 170,268
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDTA -
Current assets MENE E 359,100 170,268
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
359,100 170,268
Notes: Mt -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (a) FELUZEREAEMAILZIAAT

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one of
which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. It was interest-bearing at 5.01% per annum
and was due on 30 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2021, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance of HK$7,252,000 (2020:
HK$6,562,000) is provided.

RATZRMOREIEF Hp—fEAK
EEFEEWNBABBCERYR B
BAAIBIRERK5.01%:t 8 RBR -2
—tENB=+HER-

AT —E=ZRA=+—H &HREaE
HA 0 5 IR R B B #457,252,00058 7T (Z &
T EAE 1 6,562,00078 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against other receivables directly (see note 2(h)).

20.

AR B2 R E B IE

(4%)
wz : (80
)  EfERREZAE

BERAEMEYRIEZ RERBELER
BmEREAR BRIEAEEEM IR A R
TRIRZ P AEME R E AR R R > TEUL B
T BUERIE S B M BB RRIR
(RFF5E2(h)) °

Movements in the loss allowance B IR B E 2 28
2021 2020
& —EBECEHF
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
Kzt FET FAET
At beginning of the year R4 6,888 5,950
Impairment allowance EREREIAERE
recognised to profit or loss (i) 1,120 938
Exchange adjustment FE R 32 =
At end of the year RER (i) 8,040 6,888
Note: Wizt -
(i) At 31 March 2021, loss allowance in respect (i) A E_—F=HB=+—H">

of other receivables of the Group including
amount due from a non-controlling interest
and other receivables amounting to
HK$8,040,000 (2020: HK$6,888,000) were
recognised by the Group. The major impaired
receivables were outstanding for over 1 year
at the end of the reporting period and were
due from a non-controlling interest with
financial difficulties.

AEBORIERAERE M
FEURRIE (BLIE MU IE AR HE 2
B R H M E R RIE) Z 5B
85 78,040,00058 70 (C B - =
£ : 6,888,00078 7T) ° EARRIE
ZEBHTEARRSHAESR
HA— A DL b o R FE IR B
R~ JF R T RIS o
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20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FAFIE-EREREMERKRIE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (#8)
Notes: (continued) Kzt : (48)
() The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid (0 HmaARIEE T EEMIEER ) He

value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset
the value-added tax payable arising from the future
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

(d) At 31 March 2021, trade deposits of HK$293,121,000 (d)
(2020: HK$165,157,000) were paid by the Group to
the suppliers for secure the procurement volume and
purchase of merchandise and raw materials which
can be recognised as purchases after the year end
date upon the delivery of the merchandise and raw
materials to the Group.

RERHEETEEE B AR KKK
EITHEMELE Z BB ER

RIE-_—F=B=+—H &~&£EE
S FE P B 5 32 $293,121,0008 7T (=
T 165,157,000 7T) © LIFE(RER
BERBESYEREREME  AEE5EA
RAEER N EYREMHNEEELEH
BHERAIRERE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERREZFEAYREMBRSR

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION 28N
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERREZEEY
2021 2020
g% —ECBE
HKS$’000 HKS'000
F#ET FET
Cash at banks and on hand IRITRFEIRE 7,518 6,093
Cash and cash equivalents in the 4R &K RER K
consolidated statement of financial #Z&aRE&ERERZ
position and the consolidated RERBEEEY
statement of cash flows 7,518 6,093

Note:

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

Hrst -

BT S B IRIT A K 2 T
R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERFEEFEYREMRER

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION =EEE (@)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEISFRELEEEZHIR

financing activities

Bank

advances

for

Lease discounted
liabilities bills Total

SRITRLIRE
HEaE TR #ast
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FAET FAET

(note 25) (note 24)

(Ht5£25) (Ht5£24)

At 31 March 2019 RIZE—NF
=H=FH - 412,557 412,557

Impact on initial application =X flE A& B RS

of HKFRS 16 ZERIE65h 2 2 23,777 - 23,777
At 1 April 2019 RIZ2E—HAFME—H 23,777 412,557 436,334
Changes from financing MERERE

cash flows g0y (13,677) (385,319) (398,996)
Exchange adjustments PE 2B (1,144) (27,238) (28,382)
Lease cancelled EECHEE (4,219) - (4,219)
Interest expenses MERE 793 = 793
Reclassified as held for sales ¥ 48 AT /EHE

(note 12) (Hta#12) (4,778) - (4,778)
At 1 April 2020 A ZETEFMA—H 752 - 752
Changes from financing MERER2EEH)

cash flows (7,245) 1,110 (6,135)
Exchange adjustments b S 693 (1,110) (417)
Addition RE 25,790 - 25,790
Interest expense MERXZ 1,846 - 1,846
At 31 March 2021 RIZE2EZ—%F

=H=+—H 21,836 - 21,836
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22.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

BE_Z_—F=—"A=+—HLFE

TRADE PAYABLES 22, EHEZHE
2021 2020
—E-—fF T EEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Trade payables FET B S8 409,568 258,783
Notes: et -
(a) Trade payables are expected to be settled within one (@) A EBZRIBEEESN —ERNEER-
year.
(b) Ageing analysis (b) BRES AT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date

or shipment date is as follows:

UFARREAREEZAMANEEH
22BN EZRBZRE DA

2021 2020
B TETE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
0 - 60 days 0E60H 15,490 2,026
61 - 120 days 61F120H 19,061 419
121 - 180 days 1212180H 74,212 70,658
181 - 360 days 181F360H 295,168 181,631
Over 360 days BiE360H 5,637 4,049
409,568 258,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

23.

24,

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
PAYABLES

23.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

BstER - REREMEBRIE

2021 2020

I TETEF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FAET FAET

Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H e T8 35,773 22,597

Note:

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED
BILLS

At 31 March 2021, the bank advances for discounted
bills of HKSNil (2020: HKSNil) are secured by certain
of the bills receivables and repayable within the next
financial year with a repayment on demand clause.

The interest rates and bills discount rates ranged from
0.71% to 1.35% per annum (2020: Nil). During the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, all the bank advances
for discounted bills are fully settled.

24.

Mt -

st ERREMBEARBELBABRIN —FA
EBRER B A IR EREE -

IRITREIR R IRE

A —E - —F=B=+—H RITHRE
BRREBBT (CE_FFE THT) JHU
HTRERWEREAEFERAR T @ E
FEEE TABRERERENR

MEREZHEERESFENF0.71%E1.35%

(CTEIZFE D) oBET T —FERZ
ZTEF=-A=+—HILEE BRI
IR EREEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HHE&AaR

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the lease liabilities were N T FERCECEF=ZRH=+—

repayable as follows: B REOEESEMT :

2021 2020
ZEC-& 22

Present value Total Present value Total
of minimum minimum of minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
REREMARRAE REHREMNEE ROHECHRE RERECNER
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —FR 1,393 1,676 752 755
After 1 year but within 2 years —EBERER 5,760 6,703 = =
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 14,683 15,640 - -
21,836 24,019 752 755
Less: total future interest expenses o RRR B AR (2,183) (3)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEERE 21,836 752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated (a)
statement of financial position represents:

= A
AR H

MBRRARZAAIER

mEMBRRRZEHARES

2021 2020
B —fF TECTE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FHERE T
At beginning of the year ==l 3,982 7,197
Provision for the year REEEE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BFEH (HaE7(a) - -
- PRC EIT (notes 7(a) & 11) —HE R EFRER
(HteE7(a)R%11) 2,326 3,901
,,,,,, 2,326 N
Under/(over)-provision in respect ~ #BEFEEREFE
of prior years (FBZB )
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BF)1E#H Bz27()) - (40)
- PRCEIT (notes 7(a) & 11) — R FRISIR
(Bt5t7(a)Re11) 749 (6,255)
.7 (6,295)
Income tax paid during the year FABMRER
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNER - (73)
- PRCEIT — R TR (2,228) (2,555)
oo (2228 (2,628)
Income tax recovered during FRBE U EIFTER
the year
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —&BRER - 507
- PRCEIT —hE R EFRISIR - 1,694
,,,,,,,,, -
Effect of foreign currency exchange ERZEREZ FE
differences 358 (641)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BEATEHE
(note 12) (Kiz£12) - 247
At end of the year JIEESEN 5,187 3,982
Representing: &R :
Tax recoverable o] Kk O 18 - _
Tax payable FEIRIE 5,187 3,982
At end of the year REER 5,187 3,982
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised
(i) The components of deferred tax

assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

maMBRARZEAFR (@)

(b) CHRIVEERBEEERER

(i)

Depreciation

™ AL
EiEER

5k L & BB

BERBEEREEED
RIERNEFHUMT -

Depreciation

allowances in excess
in excess of related
of related depreciation
depreciation allowances Total
ERME EEBHER
HEEMHERITE  IFERRE 4t
Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
RERIERE : FHET FAET FAET
Continuing operations FHEREER
At 1 April 2019 N_E—NF
mA—H 66 (47) 19
Credited to profit or loss T AE@m
(note 7(a)) (Hizt7@)) = 3) 3)
Exchange adjustment PE 2 s %R - 6 6
At 31 March 2020 and RIZZZF
1 April 2020 =H=+—H
RIBEZZF
mA—H 66 (44) 22
Charged to profit orloss  HIFRBE1E%
(note 7(a)) (Ht5%7(a)) - 3 3
At 31 March 2021 NZEZ—£F
=B=+—H 66 (41) 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26. FEMBRARZEAER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EREVEIERIBEERERE (B)

recognised (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii) REMBERTREER

statement of financial position:

2021 2020
ZEZ—5F ZEITE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations EREET
Deferred tax assets R G MBI RRERZ
recognised in the IRIETRIEE B
consolidated statement of
financial position (41) (44)
Deferred tax liabilities RiFE MBI RRER 2
recognised in the IRIERIBEEE
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
25 22

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$63,490,000 (2020: HK$51,652,000)
and HK$43,051,000 (2020: HK$40,985,000)
available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely and with
expiry date of within 5 years, respectively.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2021, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to HK$56,703,000
(2020: HK$57,440,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of HK$2,835,000 (2020: HK$2,872,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

(c)

(d)

Annual Report 2020/21

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

rEMBRRARZAER (&)

REERIRIERIBE E
ATE_—F=HA=+—H'%K
EEXEFARIEE1863,490,00078
T (CZE T4 :51,652,000587T)
$243,051,0008 5 (ZE 25 4F .
40,985,00078 7t) AJ A LUK 88 K 2 i
Fow R AR ERAGERIEA
FE R FHE o FHHS AR BETE R AR 2 i %IJ
AR » Al 2R Tk 7R TE 5 18 58 4R ST
RIBEBEE-

KRERZIBLEREER

BB RE PSR E > LR RN
BABN _EENE-—F—AMUE
PREREN 2 imH Bk Z IR B AR TR
2

AR —F=-B=+—H HKH
B AT XD K@F HRE 2 G E
¥B7456,703,00058 77 (C B - F 4 !
57,440,000/ 75) © IR A A B4
ZEWBRBEZREBE AR5
%ﬁﬁmmﬁlet_ﬁtﬁ"ﬁjﬁﬁ%
ARAE H 30K 0 A T 4 R UK 5%
Lom A 2 AR IBHERIRIERIB
£152,835,0008 70 (ZT T4 !
2,872,00078 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27. BRAKFHE
() The reconciliation between the opening and () KEBFREERZSABE DR ER]
closing balances of each component of the BERERZHREN S ERE
Group'’s consolidated equity is set out in the R oARNBZERERAMRIBAI
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FYRFR SEFFUWT ¢

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share Share Merger Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
ke RMEE  AHEE  EREE  BNBR  BHER st
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKs000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000 HKS000
7E1 i TEm TEn FEr &1 TEn
At1 April 2019 RIE-NERA-H 427 41970 (1522) 7851 31,960 (14293) 70,183
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - - (7.404) (7.404)

Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EHTAE

for the year - - - - - (7,404) (7,404)
At 31 March 2020 RZBE_Z£=A=+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7851 31,960 (21,697) 62,779
At 1 April 2020 RZZZZEMA-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (21,697) 62,779
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - - (7,984) (7,984)

Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EH AR
for the year - - - - - (7,984) (7,984)

At 31 March 2021 RZB_-%=p=1+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (29,681) 54,795
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27.

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27. BRARKFHE (&)
Share capital (b) [N
2021 2020
—EZ-F “R°FF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RiH%E &5 R 8E &8
HKS$'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Authorised: ERE
Atthe beginningand atthe  RENRER
end of the year (ordinary (SIREE0.0002ETT
shares of HK$0.0002 each) 2 E&HR) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.0002ETZ
HK$0.0002 each LEk
Atthe beginningand atthe  IRENRER
end of the year 21,084,072,140 4,217 21,084,072,140 4217

The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to

receive

dividends as declared from time to

time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Nature

(i)

(ii)

and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.

Merger reserve

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

(c)

Annual Report 2020/21
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R 15 A R~ B B 10 5 B 32 P
EHERETZEREA
st (EEEHE) - EARF
RTEE=F—HF/NHRK
RHERENEERZER
BZEZERAB -AEHZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

27.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would be
transferred from the reserve account to
retained profits.

27.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

AR (R ()

HEHEERAR (&)

(c)

(iii)

(iv)

B

BEARRBERRD D BN
FE AT Al B M IE IR A B e Al
ERERABREZARN
BZRBE - RNERERAH
WERAMEERERATZ
B R B o FE A A B AR

RABRIA

A E

RBBEROPEIENR A&
BzETHENBARR
R E BRI & E R D1 10%
BBEZERB BEELST
EEEZEMEDRZ50%%
k- ARAMBLARBRE
DRI B R E A o

RIFBEANPEER A&
ERESIREEGKRmE
B ENB AR B R
IRZERWA RN %E
A% REXGTHENE TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(r).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

27. RRAKf#E (&)

(c)

(d)

Annual Report 2020/21

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

HETERRR (8

)  EHEE
RBEERR ARBZEH
BERIERF HA RS RN &
BRBEEARTDEHR
BRIRFTEEZ ERETRR E
TPEREBEARTDEHE
BRERPTEE A LURHE AR
B RFHEEZ TR

i) EREE
EREGEEEMERRE
BN ER T BIRERME
EERER ILREEZN
SR2NFrEic Set BERERIE -

HxEE
AEEEBEESNENBEBE
TS B R R T 18- FRAR
AEENSERAFECE  FS
BREHEGERABR ALK
BRI BB M R R o

FABEFEHRAERRE - (F
RmBAHZ D BEFEBELRK
TR BRBERAREZ AR R
EFER AEEBEBETHR
BB Bl B DU B AT R A S B B3R
BREE U THHBREEARE

KRB R EALAIM B A B = 2
SNSRPRTEANRY B A iR E PR IR o

3R 2020/21

159



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

27.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27.

(d) Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

RRA K (it ()

(d)

BEXEE (@)

rEBEREEABILER RNRE
ERNEZNBES EREL-
BEEAABEE AEBGEER 1

equity attributable to owners of the Company. REHRZEESBLEEAT !
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:
2021 2020
I TETEE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Total borrowings wEE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZANAFHEA AEIEHER
Company 514,171 494,071
Equity and total borrowings EmNEEE 514,171 494,071
Gearing ratio BEEAEBLEE Nil & Nil =

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT



28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2012 for the purpose
of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 6 January 2003 was terminated on the
same date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the date of
adoption. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future development
and expansion of the Group. The Share Option Scheme
shall provide incentive to encourage participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results
of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any individual being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representatives of any
member of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group) who,
as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion,
has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

28.

T F5 8k =M 5E

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance by)
the participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on
which the option is granted, which date must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the
option period after the option has been granted by the
Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from
the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

28.
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares
in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding
lapsed options), must not represent more than 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of approval of the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit as the case may be.
As at 31 March 2021, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,085,407,210 shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

28.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

29.

MR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

29. ERMTHZHEBRAKEERAR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =]
INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s major financial instruments include the REBZFETHMTABETIIRIE:
followings:
Categories of financial instruments ERITHEZ 485
2021 2020
—E-—F 2BF
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Trade receivables FEWE 5718 519,263 327,523
Amount due from a non-controlling interest F& I JE 128 I& 46 7 21 78 Kz E At
and other receivables FEWFRIE 63,485 1,436
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 7,518 6,093
Financial assets at amortised cost BN A ST EC SREE 590,266 335,052
Financial liabilities ERaE
Trade payables FET B S8 409,568 258,783
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R HAam e TIE 35,773 22,597
Lease liabilities HE&E 21,836 752
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEEAATR EREaE 467,177 282,132

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The main risks arising from the
Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures R EREY

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

(a)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty

will default on its contractual obligations

resulting in financial loss to the Group. The

Group's credit risk is primarily attributable

to trade receivables. The Group’s exposure

to credit risk arising from cash and

cash equivalents is limited because the

counterparties are banks with a minimum credit

rating of BBB assigned by Bloomberg, for which

the Group considers to have low credit risk.

EERE

TR T EFBERBRMETIRE A& H
TMIEEEZFBZARBEERR A
HEZRAR FXRBAERERE - BB
BEZEFRBZEREN TX -EEES
EEEKAGEEZEZAR  UERERRE
BEH-

EERBEXZHFEREGNE
EMERNAERRZHHERZE
BoAEBEERRIERBRE
WESHIE AEEEYRERE
RREEEMZEERRAR A

REFHREZIETE

ARBBBZIR1T > NEER A

THEEREZEERR-
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

TMIAZBBRBREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are usually due within 360
days from the invoice date or shipment date.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. Significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At
the end of the reporting period, 71.3% (2020:
77.6%) and 100% (2020: 100%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest trade debtor and the three largest trade
debtors respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

(a)

EERE (8

W E 5% E

FEBEFEEERBREERRR
BILHPTEREZBB —E£8E
ENERETENEEN G -ZF
SHERIER B R BERIRFH AR
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FREREIRIENER - BB 50
TEH#EH A E B A#E5 360
HRAZH-EBBERT  ~EEFR
g WEE AR5 o

SEBRELREEFRMBMITED
FIEMNBRIEESEAEEETA
Bo-BAEEETRRFEZHMA
EEABENERAEXRBARKSTE
KRBRFTE - RIS AR BUNE
SRIEBERET13% (BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables:

29.

TMIAZHBREREERAR
& (@

(a) SERE (&)
TEREHBARAEBZEERRN
KREWE ZRIAE RIEERHE -

2021

—E-—f

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TRHAKSIE X IRE4E BiaRE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FAET FAET
Current (not past due) BRER (GRiHR) 0.13-0.22 412,263 572
1-30 days past due BHE1E30H 0.22 8,955 19
31-60 days past due mHA31E60H 0.22 9,210 20
61-90 days past due #EHA61290H 0.22 7,935 17
More than 90 days past due I HAB3#E90H 0.22-1.00 82,564 1,036
520,927 1,664

2020

T E4HF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHASIE = IRE4ARE Eia B
% HK$'000 HKS'000
% FAET FAET
Current (not past due) BNER (RaEHR) 0.06-0.09 289,408 272
1-30 days past due AHA1E30H 0.06 7,982 5
31-60 days past due #HA31Z260H 0.06 7,783 5
61-90 days past due #HI61290H 0.06 8,521 6
More than 90 days past due I HAB3#E90H 0.06-1.00 14,924 807
328,618 1,095
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

TMIAZBBRBREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that had a
good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in

(a)

EERE (&)
RHBEXDERBEFENER
BEEER BEHZSLEERMFERRER
DU BR A W B2 FE 52 OB BRI N RO A
AR S EETAR T A E R UL
RIBFRT AERRNKERRINE
EZERNER-

B EREREZ EUEIER R
HAEEBEAERFEASEZE
FoREBEBELER SEEILE
Az LR st iR R AR B
RAREEERLEEKET M
ZE B RR A 2Rk [o] -

MW E ZRIEHE 2 BR AR

respect of trade receivables during the year is RARFEEZEEWMT :
as follows:
2021 2020
ZEZ—F TEIIE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year REY 2 456k 1,095 73
Impairment losses recognised RAFEMRSE 2 BERIE
during the year 469 1,022
Exchange adjustment PE 52 S B 100 =
Balance at end of the year REFRZ MR 1,664 1,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HLFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EMITAZHMBREREEERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBEZRME
The cash management policy of the Group AEEZREEEBRBEURE
includes short-term investment of cash BRETRPARE UKEGER
surpluses and raising of loans to cover expected RN REFTE - AEBZEEK
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly ATERSERBATAEATSHESS
monitor its current and expected liquidity ERETBELFZ 2B UER
requirements and its compliance with lending HEREH 2 HEHEBERREER
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient BEEREZEKEEREE > LU
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines HISPAEERIARHESE R AE
of funding from major institutions to meet BRBEREBESRIRTTRRES
its liquidity requirements in the short and HERHEs2EEZHRR
long term. The Group relies on its liquid funds
and bank advances as significant sources of
liquidity.
The following tables set out the remaining TREFISEBNETESRAER
contractual maturities at the end of the RE|EARZG TEOEEBER
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative TIRIBEEARMIBIRES R (B1ER
financial liabilities, which are based on BEOFEY MaFEE) RREH
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RAZERMNEABEZMNENR &
interest payments computed using contractual AEBARERERZEFEBHE
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the Ho
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
2021
ZEI-f
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amount
an
KA
Reng
BEKX R—FR —ERE ZELE ) fREE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial FiTEemERE:
liabilities:
Trade payables B S IE - 409,568 - - 409,568 409,568
Accruals and other payables fEst &R R EM
eI - 35,773 - - 35,773 35,773
Lease liabilities HE&R - 1,676 6,703 15,640 24,019 21,836
- 447,017 6,703 15,640 469,360 467,177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. SRMTHZHERAKREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 8 (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEBEZEARK (&)
2020
—2-%%
Total
contractual
Within  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year cash flow amount
B
PN
Rehe
BEX R—ER W BREE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
TET TET FET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities: FFfTE&REE

Trade payables ENESHE - 258,783 258,783 258,783
Accruals and other payables s BERREMELTRIE - 22,597 22,597 22,597
Lease liabilities HEEE - 755 755 752
- 282,135 282,135 282,132
(c) Interest rate risk () F) = | bz
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value MERKRIE—EEMTAEZANE
or future cash flows of a financial instrument WARKBESRERTHHNREEM
will fluctuate because of changes in market HIREE 2 B o ANEE LT SR
interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash THEeR GEBERMIEE21(a) AR
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate EREBNERR > R EEREWIE
bank balances (see note 21(a) for details) and ERER EERE GEBERKE
fair value interest rate risk mainly in relation to 20(a)) ©

fixed-rate amount due from a non-controlling
interest (see note 20(a) for details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by AREBBIENERG 2 5 ABER
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed AEAEZEEREIEEMIAC

and variable rate financial instruments.
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29.

MR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) in interest rates for variable-
rate financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group'’s loss after tax and the
increased/decreased Group’s retained profits by
approximately HK$375,000 (2020: decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax and the
increased/decreased the Group’s retained
profits by approximately HK$304,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank balances.
Other components of the Group’s consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) increase/decrease in interest rates is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

29.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that
is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily US$
and RMB. The Group manages this risk
as follows:

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure
it considered necessary.

The following details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EMTHZMBRAKBREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (dy SBERER (@)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) RS2 BIEELRE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)

SR A THIT)
2021 2020
2§ “EZE
Uss RMB uss RMB

=T ARE E Sz AEE
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000
FET FET TET TET

Trade receivables FEW & 738 370,439 - 254,497 =
Other receivables HitEea - 43,349 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 1,909 3,476 321 165
Trade payables P B ZIE (369,702) - (252,636) =

Net exposure arising from recognised BHEZEEREEFRELZ
assets and liabilities RIREFE 2,646 46,825 2,182 165
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. SMIAZMBRABEERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) EEER (@)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) SREZHT
The following tables indicate the TRETHAEERRS
instantaneous change in the Group’s HREAZEKRER 2 EXR
(loss)/profit after tax (and retained REBBERAESE  REM
profits) that would arise if foreign BEHEHMEBHERIE A&
exchange rates to which the Group Bz (B8 Jah (&
has significant exposure at the end REBEAN) 2B EB) o3
of the reporting period had changed LEMmE > 8P EE{BTHEE
at that date, assuming all other risk TZHEEXRAIERET
variables remained constant. In this DHMEKEBES 2
respect, it is assumed that the pegged AEHMITIERTEE
rate between the HK$ and the US$ EEF (R s%sm e
would not be materially affected by st R EEER
any changes in movement in value of ZIMEEBE A ESIEHIR
the US$ against other currencies. The ZFHE/ B21E) 28R ELL
increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange o
rates of 5% represents the sensitivity
rate of management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.
2021 2020
k- S k-t 12
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Decrease)/  Increase/  (decrease) (Decrease)/ Increase/
in foreign increase  (decrease) in foreign increase  (decrease)
exchange inloss inretained  exchange inloss in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
RiREEsE REER RiEERE  RBER
Ext#,/ L)/ m/ EEXrH/  HD)/ #m/
(T 18m (H) (TF) 1Em (AZ>)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAET FAT FET FET
RMB AR 5% (2,341) 2,341 5% ®) 8
(5%) 2,341 (2,341) (5%) 8 (8)
uss e 5% (132) 132 5% (109) 109
(5%) 132 (132) (5%) 109 (109)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER R MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EMTHZMBRAKBREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

(d)  Currency risk (continued) (dy SBERER (@)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ii) BRE 7T ()
Results of the analysis as presented RPN DTS

in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKS$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2020.

In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year, at the
US$ denominated liabilities are with
different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E_ZE_—F=F=+—HIEE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30. EXAEALRS
TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into the following material REBBFIIUL MNEARFAEALRS :

related party transactions:

Key management personnel compensation FEEE A S

All members of key management personnel are the FIEXECEANBHAERRBEZEST
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for ERERESHEZME BN I8 E
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and EREERERZINEHEE (BIEEZEA
total remuneration for them (including amounts paid to EEZRFATEREELZ N THRENS
them as employee of the Group prior to appointment ) AT

as directors) in the year as follows:

2021 2020
ZEZ—F TEIRE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Salaries and other short-term employee e REMEIAREE G
benefits 5,644 7,943
Post-employment benefits BER BT 33 27
5,677 7,970
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see =42z E st ATE TR A (RisE6(b))
note 6(b)). A o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BAKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RBERARTIIBEHREIREBEZEKR
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BARBZWT

liabilities is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—% “ZTTEHF

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FAET

Property, plant and equipment MEBEREE - 2,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #E " —F=HB=+—HIEEE

32. SUBSIDIARIES 32. MIBAR
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RIS —FE=A=+—HBZFENRBA
March 2021: IR
Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business shares held  paid up capital equity interest activities
R ML,
WEAE%E ‘e BREN  BRETRBERSZHE FEfb R A i TEREH
2021 2020
ZEZ-F TZIZE
Indirectly held
MERE
China Mining Industrial Import &  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2020: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Export Company Limited B ZE 1RERH (CE2IRE! metal minerals and
FEREELOBZERAH 1R AD) related industrial
materials
REREETRER
MRIEEIER
#
Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2020: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Limited &% Ep e 1BEH CEIEE: metal minerals and
EREBEEEBRAA 1RA19) related industrial
materials
REREETER
MRERIER
#
New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2020: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited ~ &7 EE 1BiH CBISE: management
MRBIEEEERAT 1R 1) services
REERRE
BEEERRERESIA PRC Registered ~ RMB77,365,215 (2020: 100% 100%  Production and
BERAF F B RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
(literally translated as “Ningxia AR #77,3652157C products
Huaxia Integrated Waste (C2I2F . ARE AERBETER
Recycling Company Limited”) 77,365,2157T) Em
(note) (H1z2)
Note:  Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign- Mzt . REFEAAGZHAIIEBERE-

owned enterprise.
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

iR E MBS R R MY sE
BE_®-_—F=A=+—ALEE

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33. AFREEZHBERRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2021 2020
—EZ—% T4
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
Vg3 FAET FAET
Non-current assets ERFEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKRE - =
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERTFIE s R EME
other receivables IR I8 130,740 276,647
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 4,574 2,079
135,314 278,726
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals, deposits and other fEstE R R REME
payables IRRIE 80,519 215,947
Net assets BERE 54,795 62,779
Equity L
Equity attributable to owners of AT EAR AELER
the Company
Share capital [N 27(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves (E 50,578 58,562
Total equity EmiEE 54,795 62,779
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 34. EEHEhE RFVER
JUDGEMENTS
(a) Critical accounting judgements (a) FEEHHIE
Impairment of financial assets B ERE

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in note 29.

Annual Report 2020/21

THEEBERAESENHENR
BRFEMBIERZ R&Mat o &
EREFRZEFRREFRER
B AER > ZRAEEUEL
B RANGREURRESREH
SR AT B 14 (5 51T I B o RASR R
2 K P e A (B 5T 1R 1 B2 IR B 529
2R

3R 2020/21

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

34.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(1)

Estimated impairment of non-financial
assets

Determining whether there is an
impairment requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of the non-
financial assets or the respective CGU in
which the non-financial assets belong,
which is the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows or the revision
of estimated future cash flows are less
than original estimated future cash flow,
a material impairment loss may arise.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are based on days
past due as groupings of various
debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group's trade
receivables are disclosed in note 19.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories
is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and
the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on
the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

34.
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34.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT

MR M

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values
of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation
charge for the year. The useful lives
and the residual values are based on
the Group’s historical experience with
similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2(g), the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive
for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to
the Group’s operation. The lease term
is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(vi)

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to income taxes, including
capital gain tax, if any, in Hong Kong
and PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many
transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.

34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M E R R MY T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2021 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'’
Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework?
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions*
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond 30 June

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to

2021¢
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)"

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates’
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment
HKAS 16 - Proceeds before Intended

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Use?
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°

35.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021

The directors anticipate that the application of the
above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 outbreak continued to bring about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations
and financial position. The Group has been closely
monitoring the impact from the epidemic on the
Group’s businesses and will take all necessary and
appropriate measures to reduce the impact of the
epidemic on the Group. Based on the currently
available information, the Directors confirm that there
has been no material adverse change in the financial
or trading position of the Group since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBME

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —Z-ZE “Z-hE T-)\& =4£%E
HK$’000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(ER) (ER) (ER)
RESULTS £
Revenue from continuing operations HEREEB R 601,950 481,124 1,113,468 2,225,944 1,753,198
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB E B IRR A
from continuing operations (518) /5H (11,912) (2,429) (76,961) 274,689 58,951
Income tax from continuing operations FHEREEBHMER (3,078) (3:418) (4,237) (50,012) (19,582)
(Loss)/profit for the year BT s s
from continuing operations (518 /& (14,990) (5,847) (81,198) 224,677 39,369
Non-controlling interests FERER 92 452 32 (338) 1,100
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ERBEENELEE
the Company for the year (&8 /&7
- from continuing operations —REFBREER (14,898) (5,395) (80,876) 224,339 40,469
- from discontinued operation —REERILREEHR (23,009) (11,503) 10,526 9,299 25,879
(37,907) (16,898) (70,350) 233,638 66,348
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEZ-§ ITZITFE T-NE T\ IIT—tF
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHARE
Total assets BEME 977,766 806,880 1,038,764 3,449,563 1,864,279
Total liabilities BELE (472,430) (321,128) (487,655)  (2,775384)  (1,493,079)
Non-controlling interests R 8,835 8319 8,227 8,264 8,053
514,171 494,071 559,336 682,443 379,253
Equity attributable to owners of AREER NEL#E R
the Company 514,171 494,071 559,336 682,443 379,253

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #fiREEEIERRERAT
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